




























































SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT 

DISTRICT ART IN TRANSIT POLICY 

VISION: 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) seeks to implement an arts program that will enrich 

rider experience, strengthen station identity, connect to communities, and support a distinctive sense of place at 

stations and beyond. BART's art program will build on best practices, lead the field in community participation 

strategies, engage with arts and cultural organizations and artists, and make riding BART more delightful, 

vibrant, and welcoming. 

GOALS: 

A. Cohesion. Create a cohesive and consistent art program.

B. Opportunity. Proactively seek opportunities to implement art across the District, and leverage general

capital investments by incorporating art and design elements into public-facinginfrastructure.

C. Partnerships. Maximize art in the system by leveraging BAR T's investments through partnerships with other

organizations and agencies, and through grant writing and fundraising.

D. Make Transit Work. Use arts programming to further BAR T's functional goals and enhance

public perception of BART as a transit system that works well for itsriders.

E. Showcase Art. Maintain and make BART's art collection accessible through effective asset management

and interpretive strategies.

F. Integrated Design. Utilize art to elevate the design of stations and affirm the distinct identity of

the surrounding community.

G. Transparency. Establish a transparent and effective process for developing and implementing

collaborative projects and programming.

H. Engagement. Engage with communities throughout the BART system to enhance customer relations,

support BAR T's positive impact in communities and create visible expressions of the unique characteristics

of neighborhoods around stations and along tracks.

STRATEGIES: 

Program Elements: 

l. Master Plan. Create a 15-year system-wide arts master plan; focusing on the art vision for stations and the

system as a whole, including the identification and prioritization of arts opportunities. The plan will serve

as a valuable tool to guide the allocation ofresources as they are available.

2. Implementation Plan. Create a five-year art program work plan to identify short-term project

workload, establish fundraising goals, and create a phasing and implementation plan for building up the

program.

3. Permanent Works. Continue to add permanent works to the BART system, including station art works in

the stations as well as murals on BART infrastructure visible in public areas, to add visual appeal and abate

graffiti.

4. Integrated Art. Maximize visual impact of arts funds by identifying opportunities to integrate art and

artistic elements into the design of capital improvements.

5. Temporary Art. Offer temporary art programming opportunities that appropriately activate public spaces

and engage BART riders. This may include visual arts, rotating displays, performance, media, music,





















Measure rr Bond 


oversight CoMMittee 
AnnuAl RepoRt    
June 2018







taBle of Contents


letter from the Chairwoman    1
executive summary                            2
about us: Your Bond oversight 
    Committee     2
Meeting our Mandate   4
the story of Measure rr   6
the Path forward                          8
off and running    9 
green Bonds              10
small Business outreach            12 
investment summary             14
the lifetime of Measure rr             15


Major Projects funded by 
    Measure rr              16
renew track               16
renew Power infrastructure             18
repair tunnels and structures         20
renew Mechanical infrastructure     22 
renew stations             23
renovate and replace escalators       23
train Control and other 
    Major system infrastructure         24
design and engineer 
Projects to relieve Crowding, 
    increase redundancy and 
    reduce traffic Congestion          26
access improvements                      28
Committee activities 
    and expenditures                         30







Dear Bay Area residents: 


Thank you for supporting Measure RR 


and the effort to Build a Better BART. 


As chairperson of the Bond Oversight 


Committee, I encourage you to read this 


report and keep up to date on the progress 


of this long-term project that is so crucial 


to the future of the Bay Area.  


This Bond Oversight Committee is made up of individuals with 


extensive experience in different disciplines, from finance to 


engineering to project management. We are committed to 


executing our responsibilities and ensuring that Measure RR 


funds are spent appropriately. 


Our meetings are open to the public and will be listed on our 


website at bart.gov/board. We will also be publishing an annual 


report each year to inform you of our progress and activities.  


Sincerely, 


 


Anu natarajan
League of Women Voters Seat


Anu natarajan is the legislative affairs manager at www.stopwaste.org, where she works at the local, 
regional and state levels on legislation that supports the mission of StopWaste. 


other CoMMittee MeMBers
full biographies and photographs at www.bart.gov


MiChael r. MCgill, electrical engineering Seat (Vice Chairman)


Marian BreitBart, Budgeting & Financial Management Seat


MiChael daY, Accounting Seat


daren gee, Civil engineering Seat


Christine d. Johnson, League of Women Voters Seat


John Post, Project Management Seat


Measure rr Bond CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       1


If you need language assistance services, please call (510) 464-6752. 


Si necesita servicios de asistencia de idiomas, llame al (510) 464-6752.


如需語言協助服務，請致電 (510) 464-6752。
통역이 필요하신 분은, 510-464-6752 로 문의하십시오.
Kung kailangan mo ang tulong ng mga serbisyo ng wika, paki tawagan ang (510) 464-6752.


Nếu quý vị cần dịch vụ trợ giúp về ngôn ngữ, xin vui lòng gọi số (510) 464-6752.


this report contains links to webpages with more detailed information; links appear highlighted in 


blue text.



www.bart.gov/board





2


In its first year of operation, from July 2017 to June 2018, the Measure RR Bond Oversight 


Committee has laid the groundwork for transparency and accountability in the San Francisco 


Bay Area Rapid Transit District’s implementation of a $3.5 billion rebuilding program. 


This report outlines how Measure RR came to be, what it will involve going forward, and the roles 


and responsibilities of the Bond Oversight Committee. You’ll find a summary of investments, status 


reports on each major project area and a look at how Measure RR fits into the big picture 


of BART’s reinvestment needs.


You’ll also learn more about the Committee’s activities over the past year and how to delve deeper 


into the details. 


With the first year focused heavily on design and engineering, Measure RR is now ramping up  


to full speed with improvements that will be very visible—from new escalators to modernized  


stations—as well as much more work on behind-the-scenes infrastructure that will yield benefits  


for generations to come. 


This Committee’s mandate is to provide diligent oversight that all spending is authorized and that 


projects are completed in a timely, cost-effective and quality manner to serve you, the riders of 


BART and residents of the BART District. We encourage you to visit the website www.bart.gov/


betterbart for in-depth information about Measure RR and its impacts on safety, reliability and 


relief of traffic congestion.


As of the end of April 2018, $66.8 million, or 22 percent of the first tranche of Measure RR funds, 


had been spent on the projects outlined in this report. While most Measure RR–funded projects 


are still in the ramp-up phase, based on performance to date, the projects that are underway are 


on time and on budget. At this point, the Committee has every reason to believe the bond will be 


implemented as planned. 


executive SummARy


Measure RR required BART to establish an independent Bond Oversight Committee (BOC) to verify 


that BART spends the bond revenues as promised. The BOC is comprised of seven members who 


represent a diversity of expertise, geography and demographic characteristics. Members serve two-


year terms and are eligible to serve up to six years total. They are appointed by the BART Board of 


Directors as follows:


•  One member nominated by the American Society of Civil engineers, or its successor organization, 


who has expertise in civil engineering management and oversight


•  One member nominated by the American Institute of electrical engineers, or its successor 


organization, who has expertise in electrical engineering management and oversight


About uS: 
youR bond oveRSight committee



www.bart.gov/betterbart

www.bart.gov/betterbart





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       3


•  One member nominated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, or its 


successor organization, who has expertise in audit or financial oversight


•  One member nominated by the Association for Budgeting & Financial Management section of 


the American Society for Public Administration, or its successor section or organization, who has 


expertise in municipal finance


•  One member nominated by the Project Management Institute, or its successor organization, who 


has expertise in construction project management


•  Two members nominated by the League of Women Voters, Bay Area, or its successor 


organization or chapter


The duties and responsibilities of the BOC are to:


•  Provide diligent, independent and public oversight over the expenditure of funds from the sale of 


District general obligation bonds


•  Assess how bond proceeds are spent to ensure that all spending is authorized by the ballot 


measure


•  Assess whether projects funded by bond proceeds are completed in a timely, cost-effective and 


quality manner consistent with the best interests of BART riders and District residents


•  Publish an annual report that includes a detailed account of the Committee’s activities including 


its expenditures


The full text of the duties and responsibilities of the BOC are found in Section 11 of the resolution 


that established the BOC, available in full at www.bart.gov


The current term of the Bond Oversight Committee is from July 1, 2017, until June 30, 2019.  


Back row, l-r: John Post, Christine d. Johnson, Michael day, Michael r. Mcgill; front row, l-r: Marian Breitbart,  
daren gee, anu natarajan







4


meeting ouR mAndAte 


Spending legAlly: In alignment with the California Constitution, this Committee must ensure 


that all Measure RR Bond funds have been expended legally, that is, toward the improvement of 


real property. These funds were expended legally to support project expenses in the following 


categories: preventing accidents, breakdowns, and delays; relieving overcrowding; reducing 


traffic congestion and pollution; improving earthquake safety; improving access for seniors and 


disabled persons; and replacing worn tracks, damaged tunnels, old train control systems and other 


deteriorating infrastructure.


monitoRing impActS: Another part of the Committee’s mandate is keeping the public apprised 


of consequences from construction. In calendar 2017, this included six weekends of scheduled 


interruption to service with bus bridges provided to mitigate the impact of work to rebuild the 


trackway between Fruitvale and Lake Merritt Stations in Oakland. 


Measure RR work is expected to impact riders with five bus bridges scheduled in 2018 and 11 bus 


bridges scheduled in 2019. This includes work Memorial Day weekend 2018 between Concord and 


Pleasant Hill and for four weekends including Labor Day to complete work near West Oakland. Bus 


service will carry riders from stations where trains have been diverted. Another upcoming impact of 


construction is a reduced service plan due to the earthquake retrofit of the Transbay Tube, where 


service is expected to start one hour later systemwide on weekdays, at 5 am, beginning in early 2019. 


Additionally, starting in early 2019, reduced frequency of trains is planned on Sundays until 6 pm 


through the downtown San Francisco stations to accommodate multiple Measure RR construction 


projects, such as cable replacement, tunnel lighting and water mitigation underground. 


enSuRing QuAlity And SuStAinAbility: The Committee also is charged with ensuring that 


projects are progressing in accordance with the District’s quality and sustainability standards. An 


RR Quality Management Plan has been published internally and training has begun for individuals 


assigned to RR projects. BART’s Quality Assurance organization has hired a Manager of Design/


Construction Quality as well as four of eight senior quality officers who will be performing audits.


The Measure RR programs are committed to advancing sustainability. As one example, the Oakland 


track rebuilding utilized an innovative approach involving a prefabricated interlock of concrete ties 


and welded rail. In addition to using more sustainable materials, this method is also an example 


of a safer approach by being able to complete the construction in less time than traditional 


construction.


oveRSeeing pRoJect RepoRting StAndARdS: BART utilizes program and project reporting 


that is aligned with industry standard project lifecycle framework. The current framework is 


decentralized and every project goes through multilevel approval gates including compliance and 


financial reviews. Projects are also reviewed quarterly by next-level management for deviations 


in scope, budget or schedule. The BART team is committed to continuous improvement and is 


developing a customized RR reporting framework. This approach will enhance the team’s ability to 


provide clear evidence of predetermined measurement of progress as well as the actual progress 


performance.







Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       5Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       5







6


The elected Board of Directors voted unanimously to put forward 


a $3.5 billion general obligation measure on the november 2016 


ballot. Why? It’s estimated that within 10 years nearly half of 


BART’s assets (such as train control systems, tracks and power 


cables) would be at the end of their useful life if nothing were 


done to rebuild: 


BART faces a huge financial shortfall over the coming decades to 


rebuild its aging system. existing funds were not nearly enough. 


The Board decided the most responsible thing was to let voters 


decide whether to reinvest in BART. Measure RR is a key funding 


component of that plan. In the year before the Board’s vote, BART 


held more than 230 community meetings with local stakeholders 


and civic groups to ensure widespread understanding of BART’s 


needs and to hear the public’s thoughts.


The public responded to the call for action, with nearly 70% of 


voters casting ballots to approve Measure RR in november 2016.


The bond is devoted solely to first fixing what we have—without 


earmarks, pet projects or frills. In addition, checks and balances 


are in place to ensure that the public’s money is protected and 


spent wisely. This Bond Oversight Committee will examine 


spending and report to the public. 


Complete details of what is in the bond and how it relates to 


safety, reliability, and relief of traffic congestion can be found at 


the Measure RR website, bart.gov/betterbart.


the StoRy of meASuRe RR: 


Without bARt, the bAy AReA 


doeSn’t move. it iS the bAckbone 


of the bAy AReA economy.
—emily Loper, Bay Area Council


“ “


todAy 10 yeARS


fair to good                 Poor to very Poor


69%
31% 46%


54%



www.bart.gov/betterbart





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       7Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       7







8


the pAth foRWARd


The projects funded by Measure RR will allow BART to more quickly address the most critical 


safety sensitive projects, improve system performance and allow more frequent and reliable service. 


However, BART’s overall capital reinvestment needs now exceed $17.6 billion over the next 15 years.  


BART has identified approximately two-thirds of the funding to meet its needs, and about one-


third of the funding issue remains unsolved. Coupled with BART’s operating funds, Measure RR will 


contribute $3.5 billion or 33% toward meeting the total reinvestment needs. The remaining funding 


will come from federal, state, regional and local sources. 


 


The chart below shows the breakdown of capital investment needs and funding sources through 


FY31, for a look at the big picture:


bARt fy17–31 capital investment needs and funding Sources (billions)


funding gap
$5.7 — 32%


local
$1.0 — 6%


total need: $17.6 
total funding: $11.9


$8.08 secure
$3.98 discretionary


note: all numbers are noted in 
billions.


state
$0.4 — 2%


region
$0.6 — 3%


Measure rr
$3.3 — 19%


federal
$4.2 — 24%


Bart (other)
$2.4 — 14%



http://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/07.14.17%20Final%20SRTP_CIP.pdf





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       9Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       9


BART is rolling up its sleeves to tackle major 


reinvestment projects to make the system 


safer and more reliable thanks to the $3.5 


billion Measure RR bond passed by voters. 


Already in the past year, BART has:


•  Completed a major section of track repair 


and upgrades in downtown Oakland


•  established a Bond Oversight Committee 


charged with verifying that BART spends 


bond revenues as promised


•  Issued $300 million in bonds certified as 


climate friendly green bonds


•  Awarded six General engineering Service 


contracts totaling $150 million


•  Conducted extensive outreach with the 


small business community about upcoming 


RR opportunities


Much more work lies ahead. This report 


will give you a look into each of the major 


Measure RR–funded projects planned 


through FY19. BART is rebuilding and 


reinvesting, with projects spanning every 


part of the region. Before discussing each 


project in detail, read about two topics that 


are important to Bay Area communities: 


having green bonds that promote 


environmental sustainability and making sure 


small, local businesses get a chance to take 


part in the rebuilding effort. 


off And Running


in the bAy AReA, We ARe doing ouR pARt to AddReSS


 cRiticAl deficiencieS in the locAl infRAStRuctuRe And the 


bAcklog of StAte-of-good-RepAiR needS AfteR decAdeS 


of undeRfunding.


—Grace Crunican, BART General Manager


“ “



http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20170814

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20170814

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20171211-0

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20171211-0

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20170908

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20170908

http://www.bart.gov/sustainability

http://www.bart.gov/sustainability





10


BART raised $300 million with its first green bond issue as part of 


Measure RR; green bonds are bonds funding projects with positive 


environmental effects such as mass transit. Anyone can call their 


bonds “green,” but BART went a step further, obtaining green 


bond certification through the Climate Bonds Initiative’s Low 


Carbon Transport Standard. BART was the second transit issuer 


to obtain the CBI certification (after nYMTA) and the first on the 


West Coast. 


In June 2017, BART became one of the first municipal bond 


issuers in the nation to provide priority status to investors who 


focus on lending to projects with certain environmental, social 


and governance (eSG) characteristics. During a negotiated bond 


sale, investors are invited to place orders for their desired amount 


of bonds being offered. Often, issuers like BART will set different 


priority levels for different types of investors. Most commonly, an 


issuer may give priority in certain maturities to retail investors to 


ensure the bonds are not purchased solely by large institutional 


investors. 


As part of the June 2017 bond sale, BART offered certain 


maturities with preference for retail investors residing in the three 


counties of the BART District (who provided 64% of the more 


than 450 orders totaling $378 million during the retail order 


period). The following day, BART sold the remaining maturities 


to institutional and retail investors prioritizing an eSG focus. This 


innovation in the municipal bond market enhanced the visibility 


of BART’s deal with eSG funds as well as with related non-eSG 


funds. ultimately, bonds placed with one eSG investor received 


preference among the $1.3 billion in institutional orders, and the 


resulting true interest cost was 140 basis points below BART’s 


2016 projections, saving taxpayers millions. 


“Given the overwhelming response of both retail and institutional 


investors, we’ve succeeded in broadening our investor base,” said 


Rose Poblete, BART’s Controller-Treasurer. Investors include a wide 


array from individuals (the starting threshold was $5,000) up to 


large institutions. “now that we know how to do it, and with our 


long-term sustainability goals, we will definitely do it in the future.”


gReen bondS







Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       11Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       11


given the oveRWhelming ReSponSe of 


both RetAil And inStitutionAl inveStoRS, 


We’ve Succeeded in bRoAdening ouR 


inveStoR bASe.


“ “


—Rose Poblete, BART’s Controller-Treasurer







12


BART has held dozens of outreach meetings to help small, local 


businesses better compete for work on Measure RR projects. 


Typically, small businesses are subcontractors to larger prime 


contractors.


north American Fence & Railing Inc. of Oakland has installed 


fencing for different BART projects, including Measure RR–


funded work. Its fencing was part of the work during Memorial 


Day weekend of 2018 when BART replaced track underground 


downtown Oakland.


“We appreciate that BART is trying to support businesses in local 


communities,” said Kira Comini, President and owner of north 


American Fence & Railing. “It matters; it really does.” 


Comini, who has been in the fencing business for three decades, 


said pulling together the insurance, contract documentation and 


all the other details involved in bidding on infrastructure projects 


can be daunting to new and small businesses. 


“BART does a lot to help small businesses,” she said. “This work 


is very close to us, and it’s a win-win when we can do a job right 


here in Oakland.” 


SmAll buSineSS outReAch


bARt does a 
lot to help small 
businesses. 
—Kira Comini, President 
north American Fence & Railing


Kira Comini, President 
of north american fence & railing, 


standing beside one of the fences her 
company installed for Bart


“ “







Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       13Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       13







14


inveStment SummARy
There’s a tremendous amount of work underway, with much more to come. It’s important to 


understand that these first stages represent a heavy investment in engineering. Once engineering 


has been completed, projects will start to roll out quickly and will become much more visible to the 


public. This chart gives you a quick glance at where the investments are going. 


benefits


$ millions
% of 
total 
bond Safety Reliability


crowding 
+traffic Relief


RepAiR And ReplAce 
cRiticAl SAfety 
infRAStRuctuRe


$3,165 90% 3 3 3


renew track $625 18% 3 3
renew power infrastructure $1,225 35% 3 3
repair tunnels and structures $570 16% 3 3
renew mechanical infrastructure $135 4% 3 3
renew stations $210 6% 3 3 3
replace train control and other 
major system infrastructure to 
increase peak period capacity


$400 12% 3 3 3


Relieve cRoWding, Reduce 
tRAffic congeStion And 
expAnd oppoRtunitieS to 
SAfely AcceSS StAtionS


$335 10% 3 3 3


design and engineer future  
projects to relieve crowding,  
increase system redundancy 
and reduce traffic congestion


$200 6% 3 3


expand opportunities to safely 
access stations


$135 4% 3 3 3
totAl $3,500 100%


Revised draft 
Summary of 
investments







Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       15


the lifetime of meASuRe RR 
In the graphic below, you’ll see what bonds will be issued over the life of Measure RR. A bond works 


like a type of loan—investors loan money to BART so it can invest in rebuilding the BART system 


and then BART must repay the investors back with interest on the amount borrowed. BART will 


raise the money to pay back the bonds through property taxes.


BART anticipates that each bond will be paid off within 30 years after it is issued, but BART won’t 


issue all of the bonds at the same time. Instead, BART projects it will issue the $3.5 billion in bonds 


in equal installments every two years for eighteen years as the funds are needed to rebuild the 


aging system. This means that, from start to finish, BART estimates property owners could be 


helping BART pay 


off the bonds for 


48 years.


RR program overview - 


expenditures ($ millions)


expended
(through 


April 2018)


% expended 
out of 1st 
tranche


1st tranche 
Spending 
objective


(through June 2020)


% 1st tranche 
out of 


total bond


renew track $35.5 38% $93.2 15%


renew power infrastructure $22.5 19% $120.6 10%


repair tunnels and structures $3.2 14% $22.5 4%


renew mechanical $2.4 32% $7.5 6%


renew stations $1.4 15% $9.1 4%


replace train control/increase capacity $0.5 3% $19.8 5%


design/engineer to relieve crowding $0.7 6% $12.5 6%


expand safe access to stations $0.6 4% $14.8 11%


totAl $66.8 22% $300 9%


6/2
01


7 


7/2
01


7 


8/2
01


7 


9/2
01


7 


10
/20


17
 


11
/20


17
 


12
/20


17
 


1/2
01


8 


2/2
01


8 


3/2
01


8 


4/2
01


8 


5/2
01


8 


6/2
01


8 


7/2
01


8 


8/2
01


8 


9/2
01


8 


10
/20


18
 


11
/20


18
 


12
/20


18
 


2/2
01


9 


3/2
01


9 


4/2
01


9 


5/2
01


9 


6/2
01


9 


7/2
01


9 


8/2
01


9 


9/2
01


9 


10
/20


19
 


11
/20


19
 


12
/20


19
 


1/2
02


0


2/2
02


0


3/2
02


0


4/2
02


0


5/2
02


0


6/2
02


0


1/2
01


9 


Month/Calendar Year


BART Measure RR Program—FIRST TRANCHE ($300M Spending Objective 6/2017–6/2020
Baseline vs. Actual Cash Flow (Cumulative)


Baseline         Actual         Forecast


Ca
sh


flo
w


 —
Cu


m
ul


at
iv


e 
(m


ill
io


ns
)


$300
12/2019


$66.8


$35.64


$250


$200


$150


$100


  $50


    $0







16


Renew track
Through FY19, riders will see the replacement of 10 miles of 


worn rail and trackway components in Oakland, Pleasant Hill and 


Concord to make the ride quieter, safer and more reliable.  


($93.2 million 1st tranche spending objective)


Track work is progressing ahead of schedule, with $35.5 million 


spent and another $19.2 million committed. This work is essential 


for safety and reliability and for reducing delays. In addition, BART 


has begun the work of reshaping wheel profiles and railheads, an 


important improvement that will bring customers a quieter ride. 


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


$625
Million


18%
of Bond


reliability


safety


Cross-section of track that is worn,
in background; and cross-section of 
new track. from: @MrCoffeeBrains


BART is doing good here. 
Track replacement 
is inconvenient, but 
slowdowns and possible 
derailment due to worn 
tracks is even worse.



http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2018/news20180531

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20171016





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       17Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       17







18


Renew power infrastructure 
There’ll be work on new traction power substations in downtown 


San Francisco. Traction power is critical to powering train cars. 


($7.6 million 1st tranche spending objective)
 


Much of the cabling technology and substations channeling the 


energy that runs BART trains is outdated and in a state of age-


related disrepair. The 34.5 kV cables themselves don’t even really 


resemble what the average person would imagine a cable to be: 


They’re quite large and encased within nitrogen-filled pipes about 


the circumference of a grapefruit. The 34.5 kV cables run through 


these pipes—original hardware dating back to when the system 


was built.


BART needs to replace these pipes, cables (34.5kV), and 


substations with modern shielded cabling and new distribution 


hardware so the power can be properly stepped down and fed 


into the 1,000-volt electrified third rail. The third rail is what brings 


power to the train cars via conductive metal collector shoes 


skimming along the third rail’s surface. 


There are 28 active cabling projects, with 92% in design, 4% in 


planning and 4% in construction, including the recently completed 


section between Valencia and 24th St./Mission in San Francisco. 


Final design review is underway for a $45 million project from the 


Transbay Tube to 24th St., with a contract expected to be awarded 


this fall. ($59.1 million 1st tranche spending objective)
 


Another element of the traction power program is the 


replacement of 28 substations. Currently, 100% of these are in 


the design phase. It’s anticipated that three contracts will be 


advertised starting in 2019 with a plan to spend $35 million for the 


engineering effort. In addition to replacing existing substations, 


two new substations will be added in downtown San Francisco 


to support capacity expansion that will come with new train cars 


and implementation of a new train control system. ($21.1 million 1st 


tranche spending objective)


There will be additional work in this category of $32.8 million to 


reach the total first tranche spending objective of $120.6 million.


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


      @sfbart            @sfbartalert


$1,225
Million


35%
of Bond


reliability


safety



http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2016/news20161004





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       19


decayed old cable, left, and modern insulated cable, right 


Measure rr is funding critical upgrades of electrical equipment, like these before-and-after rectifiers. Bart trains need 1,000 volts 
dC to power their motors, and an electrical device called a rectifier helps them get it. like a phone charger, rectifiers convert the 
alternating current provided by the electric company to the direct current that our trains use. in april 2018 at orinda station, traction 
power workers swapped out dozens of components to ensure an uninterrupted flow of electricity from massive 34,500–volts aC 
cables to the electric third rail in our tracks. our trains, and our customers, never skipped a beat.







$570
Million


16%
of Bond


reliability


safety


Repair tunnels and 
Structures
•  earthquake safety: Begin retrofitting the Transbay Tube  


($4.3 million 1st tranche spending objective), preliminary 


engineering to strengthen the track between the Lake Merritt 


and Coliseum stations ($2.4 million 1st tranche spending 


objective) and replacing cross-passage doors in the Transbay 


Tube, which are critical in the event of an emergency evacuation 


($5.4 million 1st tranche spending objective)


•   Caldecott tunnel repair: Begin realignment of the Caldecott 


BART Tunnel, which has moved over several decades because of 


Hayward Fault creep ($4 million 1st tranche spending objective) 


•   Waterproofing: upgrade waterproofing in tunnels and structures 


—water seepage has been damaging vital systems and has 


caused major delays ($2.7 million 1st tranche spending objective) 


There will be additional work in this category of $3.7 million to 


reach the total first tranche spending objective of $22.5 million.


Tunnel and structure work is extremely important for safety.  These 


are items such as replacing the door in the Transbay Tube that 


would be used for passengers to exit in an emergency and the 


catwalks on aerial structures, on which passengers would walk to 


safety if an evacuation from an aerial structure were necessary.


status of work is as follows:


•  Tunnel waterproofing for the line underground downtown  


San Francisco is 90% design complete


• Richmond line tunnel waterproofing is in preliminary design


•   Substation and train control hut roof waterproofing is 


progressing on schedule


• Fall protection design is 25% complete 


• Platform edge replacement is scheduled at MacArthur for 2018


•  In addition, there will be a full retrofit of seven additional sections 


of the Transbay Tube at an estimated cost of $53.75 million


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


from: @sf_transit_news


In other news, @SFBART 


bond passes! Improving 


transit is essential to the 


health of the Bay Area 


economy.
 


20



http://www.bart.gov/about/projects/eqs

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2016/news20160919-0





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       21Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       21







22


$135
Million


4%
of Bond


reliability


safety


Renew mechanical 
infrastructure
Measure RR will fund $135 million of Mechanical Systems Program 


improvements, and 100% of these projects are currently in the 


engineering stage.  


These include storm water treatment facilities, fire services in 


the train maintenance yards, replacement of HVAC systems, fire 


suppression work at the Lake Merritt Administration Building, and 


replacement of computer room cooling units. 


Most parts of these systems are not immediately visible to riders; 


however, they’re essential for safety and for preventing delays. 


Many mechanical systems are outdated, and thanks to Measure 


RR, BART will be able to replace them with new, more efficient 


and more reliable systems. 


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


from: @sfcta


@SFBART has broken 


ground on its first of 22 


escalator canopies. Hat tip 


to Measure RR—a $3.5B 


voter-approved bond 


measure—for helping 


make this happen.


Measure rr will allow Bart to renew and replace outdated mechanical infrastructure 
assets that are very important to safety—things like ventilation fans, fire service and 
suppression systems, and sewage pumps.



http://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/better-bart/MechanicalInfrastructure2018.pdf

http://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/better-bart/MechanicalInfrastructure2018.pdf





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       23


Renew Stations
Another $210 million of Measure RR funds will go toward very 


visible improvements to many of our aging stations. Three 


stations will undergo major 


modernizations, including 


el Cerrito del norte, Powell 


Street and 19th Street/


Oakland. Conceptual 


planning will be done for 


modernizations at seven 


other stations: Concord, 


Downtown Berkeley, 


Coliseum, embarcadero, 


Montgomery, Civic Center 


and Balboa Park.  


$210
Million


6%
of Bond


safety


Crowding
traffic


Renovate & Replace escalators


Renovation or replacement of platform and street escalators in 


downtown San Francisco stations, along with canopies on street 


escalators to prevent damage from the elements, is another 


part of station renewal that is of high importance to riders. The 


Measure RR escalator Replacement Program will replace or truss 


up 40 escalators between embarcadero and Civic Center stations, 


including 22 street escalators and 18 platform escalators. It’s 


anticipated BART can complete work on six to nine escalators per 


year. Also, 22 canopies are planned in these same areas.


rendering of Balboa Park modernization


reliability



http://www.bart.gov/about/planning/station

http://www.bart.gov/about/planning/station

http://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/better-bart/RenewStations2018.pdf





24


train control and other 
major System infrastructure 
One of the big-ticket items from Measure RR is the Train Control 


Modernization Program, which will allow BART to increase 


capacity, running all 10-car trains, and more of them, through 


the Transbay Tube during peak hours. ($17.3 million 1st tranche 


spending objective)


In order to maintain the new and expanded Fleet of the Future, 


Measure RR provides funds to begin expansion of BART’s Hayward 


Maintenance Complex, where the trains will be serviced.  


($2.2 million 1st tranche spending objective)


There will be additional work in this category of $0.3 million to 


reach the total first tranche spending objective of $19.8 million.


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


$400
Million


12%
of Bond


reliability


safety


Crowding
traffic


“i want to say thank you very much for the track work from fruitvale 
to lake Merritt. the ride is already smoother. i appreciate your work.” 
—evelyn M.   



http://www.bart.gov/about/projects/hmc

http://www.bart.gov/about/projects/hmc





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       25Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       25







26


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


design and engineer projects 
to Relieve crowding, increase 
Redundancy and Reduce 
traffic congestion
While still in the very early stages, Measure RR has set aside 


$200 million to study ways in which BART can relieve crowding 


and create greater system redundancy to help mitigate the impact 


of delays. One of these is the possibility of a second Transbay 


crossing; another, a pilot program for platform screen doors at 


12th Street/Oakland Station, which would allow more riders to 


stand safely on the platforms.  


easing congestion is important for the health and vitality of all our 


Bay Area communities, and BART is committed to working toward 


that goal. 


 


A second underwater crossing for train cars would accommodate 


far more growth than a bridge; consider the graphic below 


that shows how many riders BART carries through the current 


Transbay Tube compared with what the Bay Bridge can 


accommodate. 


 


$200
Million


6%
of Bond


reliability


Crowding
traffic


from: @alsaldich


Took @SFBART to SF this morning and for the first time in years there 


was no deafening screaming sound coming from the wheels, just like a 


real train! Amazing! 


27,000 people per hour 
move under the Bay 
at rush hour on BART


14,200 people in cars per hour move 
over the Bay at rush hour30K


25K


20K


15K


10K


5K


0


AM PeAk Hour TrAffic 
(WesTbound)


Bay 
Bridge


Transbay 
Tube


Pe
op


le
 Tr


av
el


in
g


*Assumes average of 1.7 persons per vehicle (Caltrans)



http://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/better-bart/RelievingCrowding2018.pdf

http://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/better-bart/RelievingCrowding2018.pdf





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       27Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       27







28


mAJoR pRoJectS funded by meASuRe RR 


Access improvements
Another $135 million will be spent to expand opportunities to 


safely access stations, such as for improvements to bicycle and 


pedestrian access. 


 


from: MrCoffeeBrains
8/30/17   7:54 PM


BART is doing good here. 
Track replacement 
is inconvenient but 
slowdowns and possible 
derailment due to worn 
tracks is even worse.


$135
Million


4%
of Bond


reliability


safety


Crowding
traffic


pRoJect


expAnd SAfe AcceSS to StAtionS


Pittsburg/Bay Point shared Mobility—drop-off & Bike lanes


el Cerrito del norte—ohlone greenway & Bus shelter


fremont station active access—secure Bike Parking


fremont station active access—Pedestrian Connection


dublin/Pleasanton station active access—secure Bike Parking, 
iron horse trail


san leandro station active access—secure Bike Parking 


north Berkeley station active access—secure Bike Parking, ohlone


downtown sf active access—embarcadero Bike station


19th street station active access—Bike station


Bicycle stair Channels


lake Merritt station active access—Plaza (including Bike station)


Macarthur station active access—40th street Pedestrian lighting


accessible fare gates



http://www.bart.gov/about/planning/station-access

http://www.bart.gov/about/planning/station-access





Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       29Measure rr Bond oversight CoMMittee annual report  |  2018       29


this rendering depicts one type 
of secure bike parking facility; 
secure bike parking will be 
constructed at several stations 
to encourage bicycle access.







committee Activities and expenditures
As part of this report, the bond oversight committee also presents a summary of its 
activities and expenditures. 


• July 26, 2017 — Orientation Meeting
BART General Manager Grace Crunican welcomed the Committee members and thanked 
them for their willingness to serve. Ms. Crunican also gave members an overview of the 
complex nature of BART’s infrastructure and funding needs. She concluded by explaining the 
critical role of the Committee in providing independent oversight of the Measure RR program 
and inviting members to contact her with their questions or concerns. Staff then walked 
members through a binder of background information about BART. no members of the 
public attended.


• Jan. 31, 2018 — Regular Meeting 
The Committee elected Anu natarajan as its chair and Michael McGill as its vice chair. 
Following the election, the Committee approved the minutes of the July 26, 2017, inaugural 
meeting. BART Board President Robert Raburn, who attended the meeting as a member 
of the public, thanked the members for their service. Staff gave an asset management 
presentation that explained the process BART used to develop the list of Measure RR– 
funded projects. Staff also presented the status of Measure RR–funded projects including 
expenditures to date. no members of the public attended.


• April 18, 2018 — Regular Meeting
The Committee met to discuss protocols governing communication between BART staff and 
Committee members. Then the Committee discussed edits to the first draft of its Annual 
Report. Finally, staff gave the Committee a presentation about how BART communicates 
news about Measure RR to the public. General Manager Grace Crunican attended, along with 
BART Board President Robert Raburn and Board Member Debora Allen, as members of the 
public. no members of the public attended.


• June 1, 2018 — Regular Meeting
The Committee approved the minutes from its January and April meetings along with 
protocols governing communication with BART staff. Then it discussed and approved its 2018 
Annual Report. In addition, the Committee agreed upon a regular schedule to meet quarterly 
on the third Friday of the month starting in September. no members of the public attended.


expenditures: As of this report, the committee has spent $45. 


You are welcome to give public input on this Board’s activities. Our meetings are open to 
the public and will be listed on the BART website at www.bart.gov/board. We will also be 
publishing an annual report each year to inform you of our progress and activities. You can 
sign up for email notices of BART news, which will include major milestones in Measure RR 
work at www.bart.gov/alerts.


the public can view meeting minutes at www.bart.gov/bondoversight.












SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT


Memorandum


TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 21,2018


FROM: Independent Police Auditor


SUBJECT: Appointment of BART Poiice Citizen Review Board Members


ln accordance with Chapter 3-02 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), tirose members
of the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) appointed by Directors flom Districts 1, 3,
5, 7 and 9, as well as &e Public-at-Large member, shall have their temrs of service expire on
June 30, 2018. Ali appointn:onts of new members, or reappointments of currently-seated
members shall be for two-year terms.


According to Chapter 1-05(G) of the Model, the Office of the lndependent Police Auditor
(OIPA) will facilitate the application process for seats on t}l.e BPCRB and will coordinate the
selection process with the Office of the District Secretary and the Board of Directors (Board).


The Directors from Districts \, 3, 7 and t have indicated an intention to reappoint each of their
current BPCRB appointees, respectiveiy, and each of those current BPCRB appointees has
indicated acceptance of such reappointment. The sitting Public-at-Large member and the sitting
District 5 appointee are not seeking reappointmer(, and the process for selecting new Disfrict 5
and Public'at-Large appointees is being addressed separately.


The Director frorn Diskict 2 has selected an appointee to fill a currently vacant seat for &e
remainder of,a term which expires on June 30, 2019. Attached is a motion which if adopted by
*te Board, will ratifu the appointments of the Directors &om Districts 1, 2, 3,7 and9.


Please contact rne at {510) 874-7477 or qipa&jbfiS,g*v at yow convenience if you have any
questions about this matter.


Thankvou. r


/,{iA#Ttr{,{^-
I Russell G. B6om


Attachments


Board Appointed Oflicers
Depufy General Manager


Page I ofl







RATIFICATION OF BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD APPOINTMENTS


MOTION:


That the Board of Directors ratifies the BART Police Citizen Review Board appointrnent or
reappointment of the following members for the term of 2 years, begirming on July l, 2018 and
expiring on June 30, 2020:


Kenneth Loo - District 1


William White - District 3
Aman Sebahtu - District 7


George D. Perezvelez - District 9


And that the Board of Directors ratifies the BART Police Citizen Review Board appointment of
the following member for a term expiring on June 30,2019:


Pete Longmire - District 2







Dwoine "Pele" Longmire
Pittsburg, Colilornio 94565


Effective communicotor with the obilily to objeclively review complex mullifoceled issues. Extensive low
enforcement bockground wilh knowledge of the criminoljuslice ond correction syslem. Extensive bockground
in communicoling Wth the generol public. businesses. sociol orgonizotions ond Governmentol Boord of
Directors. Exlensive experience in functioning os on Execulive Direclor, reporting to o five person Government
Boord.


Experience


Pillsburg City Council - Moyor 2010 - Currenl


Serve os on elected officiol responsible for selling policies, gools & priorilies. Choir City Council meelings &
public heorings.


Licensed Pdvole lnvesligqlor- slole of Colilornio 'l ?t7-Curenl


Conducl criminol, civil & investigotions. Also conlrocted lo conducled police inlernol offoks investlgolions.


Securily & supporl Service Direclor- Koiser Permonenle 2OO4-2O14


Monoged ond directed regionol security needs for multiple hospilols ond medicol office siles. Also directed
multiple Supporl Service deporiments.


Police otlicer Cilies of Vollejo & Pittsburg 1978-1998


Served os o sworn Police Oflicer. Supervised potrol, norcotics & troffic teoms.


Conlro Coslo County Civil Grond Jury Member '1999-2001


Sworn Officer of the Court, chorged with monitoring ond invesiigoting public ogencies.


Educotion & Cerlificolions


Solono Community College & los Medonos College C]iminol Juslice


Sonlq Roso Jr. College


Koiser Permonente leodership Developmenl


Colilornio Depl. ol Juslice - P.O.S.T. Low Enlorcement Advonce Cerlificole


Colilornio Depl. ol Consumer Alloirs Privqle lnvesligolion [icense


Skills








SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT


Memorandum


TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 18.2017


FROM: Independent Police Auditor


SUBJECT: Revised BART Citizen Oversight Model


Pursuant to Chapter 3-01 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), the Board of Directors
(Board), with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB), Independent Police
Auditor (lPA), BART Police Associations (BPOA and BPMA), complainants, and the public will
evaluate the BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation to
determine whether the need exists to make changes andlor otherwise make adjustments to the
system to improve its continued performance.


In order to facilitate the review and evaluation required by the Model, the Office ofthe Independent
Police Auditor (OIPA) engaged the OIR Group to evaluate the system and generate a report for
your consideration. The evaluation commenced in January 2017 and a final report was generated


and submitted in June 2017 (with an Addendum in July 2017) including a total of 54


recommendations for improvement. The report was distributed and discussed at a July 18,2017
Operations, Safety and Workforce Standing Committee meeting and again at Board meetings on
August 10, 2017 and February 22,2018. On March 8, 2018 the Board voted unanimously to
approve and implement 50 of the 54 recommendations.


OIPA and the BART Office of the General Counsel (OGC) drafted a revised Model that integrates
each ofthe approved recommendations that required a change to the Model language. The attached
revision was also submitted to the BART General Manager, Interim District Secretary, and the
ChiefofPolice for review, comment, and input prior to being finalized for your approval.


Please note the following inclusions:


1 . The Board approved Recommendation #54 which suggested that there be a defined process
around the appointment/removal of BPCRB members when a new Director takes office.
Without further direction from OIR (other than that there should be a process) OIPA and
the OGC suggested the process included in the revised Model Chapter 2-02(B)(vi) which
provides that a newly-elected Director may replace the seated BPCRB appointee within 90
calendar days of taking office, otherwise the seated BPCRB member will serve until the
expiration ofthe applicable term.


2. The Board approved Recommendation #15 which refined the process by which the Chief
may appeal OIPA/BPCRB findings to the GM. The OGC suggested inclusion of a 45-day
time limit to appeal, which was not specified by OIR. but which seems fair and appropriare


Page I of2







in light of the one-year statute for imposition of discipline and the normal turnaround time
for OIPA investigarions. (Chapter I -04(B)(ir,)).


3. The Board approved Recommendation #53 which called for periodic reviews of the
oversight ty.l"_*t but did not specify tl:e time period between those reviews. Based on my
experience with the OIR evaluation, and based on my impressionthat it takes some perioi
of time to test and determine whether a particular practice is effectivdroblematic,l hur"
suggested and the OGC has concurred that a three-year cycle seerxs appropriate. (Chapter
3-0r).


Attached to this memorandum is a motion which, if adopted by the Board, will ratify adoption of
the revised Model.


Please contact me at (510) 874-7477 or oipar.?,trar"t.gov at your convenience if you have any
questions about this matter.


Attachment
cc: Board Appointed Officers


Depuf,v General Manager


Thank you,


Russell G. Bloori


Page 2 of2







RATIFICATION OF REVISED BART CITIZEN OVERSIGHT MODEL


MOTION:


That the Board of Directors ratifies the adoption of a revised BART Citizen Oversight Model
that reflects and codifies Board action on March 8,2018.







Revised Pursuant to Board Action on


lDArEl


SAN FRANCTSCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT


ClTIZEN OVERSIGHT MODET


Purpose: To provide on effective independent citizen oversight system thot promotes integrity ond
encouroges systemic chonge ond improvement in the police services thot the Son Froncisco Boy Areo
Ropid Tronsit District (BART) provides to the public by ensuring thol internol police occountobility
system functions properly; thot behoviorol, procedurol, ond policy deficiencies ore identified ond


oppropriotely oddressed, including rociol profiling ond ollegotions of rociolly obusive treotmenti
ond, thot comploints ore investigoted through on obiective qnd foir process for oll porties involved.
The system will onolyze ollegotions of misconduct; utilize doto to identify trends, including


disciplinory outcomes ond trends; recommend corrective oction ond or troining; mointoin


confidentiolity; moke policy recommendotions; ond report regulorly to the BART Boord of Directors


ond the public. The essentiol community involvement component of the system sholl be occomplished
through the inclusion of o BART Police Citizen Review Boord.


Chopter l:
I -OI OFFICE OF THE INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR
1-O2 APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR
r -03 scoPE
1.04 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES


I -05 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN OIPA AND THE BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD


I -06 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN OIPA, BPD, DISTRICT SECRETARY, AND OTHER DISTRICT


DEPARTMENTS
1-07 COOPERATION WITH OIPA
I -08 INDEPENDENCE OF O]PA
I -09 CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION
1.10 CODE OF ETHICS


l -l I TI/Y\ELINESS


Chopler 2:
2-O1 BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD
2-02 APPOINTMENT OF BPCRB MEMBERS


2-O3 BPCRB MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS


2-O4 BPCRB MEMBER MEETING ATTENDANCE
2-O5 BPCRB VACANCIES
2-06 SCOPE
2-07 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES


2.08 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BPCRB AND OIPA
2-O9 CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION
2-10 CODE OF ETHTCS


Chopler 3:
3-'I PERIODIC OVERSIGHT SYSTEM EVALUATION


ADMtNtEGAt 114868.7 Poge | 1







Chopter l-Ol OFFICE OF THE INDEPENDENT POIICE AUDTTOR


Pursuont to Colifornio Public Utilities Code Section 28767.8, the Office of the lndependent police
Auditor (OIPA) sholl be estoblished by the Boord of Directors (Boord) in keeping wirh the Core
Principles for on Effective Police Auditor's Office.r


Chopter l-O2 APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDTTOR


The lndependent Police Auditor (lPA) sholl be oppointed by ond report directly to the Boord.


Chopter l-O3 SCOPE


OIPA sholl hove the outhority to exercise its duties ond responsibilities os outlined below, regording
ony ond oll low enforcement ond police octivities or personnel operoting under the outhority of the
BART Police Deportment (BPD). OIPA sholl be outhorized to investigote ony comploinrs olleging
police officer misconduct thot implicote the policies of the BPD. OIPA sholl be committed to the
prompt, timely, ond efficient resolution of oll comploints, including, but not limited to, odherence to
oll opplicoble stotutory requirements. OIPA's scope of outhority sholl not extend beyond the BpD.


Chopter l-O4 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBttITtES


A. Comploints Received from Members of the Public
Any person moy file o comploint or ollegotion of wrongdoing with the OIPA ogoinst ony
BPD employee. Upon receipt of o comploint or ollegotion, olpA sholl:
i) Ensure thot o timely, thorough, complete, obiective, ond foir investigotion into the


comploint is conducted by OIPA or BPD.


ii) Provide the comploinont ond oll other officers who ore the subiect(s) of the investigotion
with timely updotes on the progress of oll investigotions conducted by OIPA, unless the
specific focts of the invesfigotion would prohibit such notificotion.


iii) Reoch on independent finding os to the focts of on investigotion.
iv) The OIPA sholl ossess the conduct of the BPD employee considering the focts discovered


through investigotion, the low, the policies, ond troining of the BpD.


B. Recommendotions for Corrective Action
i) lndependent investigotive findings of "sustoined" mode by OIPA sholl include


recommendotions for corrective/punitive oction, up to ond including terminqtion where
worronted, ond sholl include prior comploints ond their disposition. When the evidence
does not support the ollegotions of misconduct, the IPA sholl recommend o finding of
Unfounded, Exoneroted, or Not Sustoined.


ii) ln o confidentiol personnel meeting, the IPA sholl submit his/her investigotive findings
ond recommendotions to the BART Police Citizen Review Boord (BPCRB) for review.
Should the BPCRB ogree by simple moiority with the findings ond recommendotions, the
report will be submitted to the Chief of Police for oppropriote oction. The Chief of Police
sholl implement the recommended oction, obsent oppeol.


iii) The BPCRB sholl onnounce eoch member's vote regording its occeptonce of the OIPA
findings ond recommendotions for discipline in open session, ond in coses in which o non-
unonimous moiority ogrees with the OIPA findings ond recommendotions, the dissenting


r Report of rhe First Notionol Police Auditors Conference, Morch 26-27,2003, Prepored by Somuel Wolker
ADMINLEGAL 114868,7 Poge | 2







members should generote o memorondum including the rotionole for diverging from the
moiority opinion without divulging privileged or confidentiol informotion ond evidence.
Should the Chief of Police disogree with the findings ond recommendotions of OIPA ond
the BPCRB, the Chief of Police moy oppeol to the Generol Monoger (GM) within 45
colendor doys of the issuonce of the findings ond recommendotions. The Chief of Police


will submit his/her oppeol in o writing setting forth his/her disogreements with the
findings ond provide recommendotions to the lPA, the BPRCB, ond the GM. After receipt
of the oppeol, the GM sholl convene o confidentiol personnel meeting to include the


Chief of Police, the lPA, ond o representotive of the BPCRB. After receiving input from
the Chief of Police, the lPA, ond the BPCRB representotive, the GM sholl rule ond submit


his/her decision in writing to the Chief of Police, the IPA ond the BPCRB. The Chief of
Police sholl implement the GM's decision.


Should the BPCRB disogree with the OIPA findings by simple moiority, in o confidentiol
personnel meeting, the IPA ond the BPCRB sholl ottempt to come to o consensus. lf the


BPCRB ond the IPA foil to come to o consensus, by simple moiority, the BPCRB moy
oppeol. The efforts mode to ochieve consensus sholl be documenied by the BPCRB ond


sholl be forworded to the GM os o port of the oppeol. All oppeols regording findings
ond recommendotions for corrective/punitive oction or dismissol, between the BPCRB


ond the IPA will be oppeoled to the GM, in o confidentiol personnelmeeting to include


the Chief of Police. At the confidentiol personnel meeting, The BPCRB Choir ond the IPA


will submit their disogreemenis ond recommendolions to the GM. The GM sholl rule on


the motter ond moke his/her decision known to the Chief of Police, the BPCRB ond the


lPA. The Chief of Police sholl implement the GM's decision, which will be finol.
Discipline recommended pursuont to these processes sholl be subiect to on odministrotive
heoring prior to implementotion in o,monner consistent with oddressing the due process


rights of public employees, when opplicoble. Any finol determinotions thot modify or
rescind initiol dispositions ond orbitrotion determinotions sholl be evoluoted by the IPA


to identify ony systemic issues ondf or polentiol for the serious erosion of occountobility
reloted to such modificotions, ond sholl be included in o public IPA report. The IPA sholl


work with BPD to remedy ony such issues identified by the evoluotion.


C. Review Legol Cloims, Lowsuits, ond Settlements


OIPA sholl be oufhorized to review ony legol cloims ondf or lowsuits ogoinst BART thot
relote to the conduct of BPD personnel to ensure thot oll ollegotions of misconduct ore
thoroughly investigoted by OIPA ondfor BPD, ond to identify ony systemic issues


regording BPD proctices ond/or policies.


OIPA sholl be ouihorized to review ony significont settlements ond odverse iudgments
involving BPD.


OIPA sholl work with BPD to develop corrective oction intended to remediote ony
systemic issues identified through review of ony significont settlements or odverse


iudgements involving the BPD.


OIPA sholl publicly report its involvement in the review of legol cloims, lowsuits ond
settlements in o monner consistent with oll opplicoble confidentiolity requirements.


D. Review lnvestigotions Conducted by BPD


i) OIPA sholl be outhorized to review BPD lnternol Affoirs Bureou (lA) investigotions to
determine whether the investigotions ore complete, thorough, obiective, ond foir.


ir)


v)


vi)


ii)


iii)


ir)


ADMINLEGAL 114868.7 Poge | 3







The IPA sholl, subiect to his or her discretion, hove outhority to monitor or require follow-
up investigotion into ony citizen comploint or ollegotion thot is investigoted by BPD.


OIPA should provide recommendotions to the BPD regording investigotive quolity
ondf or opproprioteness of disciplinory recommendotions prior to the finolizotion of the
investigotive report ond notificotion of disposition to subiect officers ond comploinonts.
OIPA is outhorized to publicly report ony resistonce by the BPD to conduct reosonoble
odditionol investigotive tosks, including by woy of notificotion to the Boord. the BPCRB,


ond the GM.


Review Uses of Force by BPD Officers
i) OIPA sholl hove the outhority ond responsibility to review oll Use of Force (UOF)


incidents by BPD officers to determine whether the UOF should be the subiect of on lA
investigotion andf or whether other issues ore implicoted for the individuol officer or for
BPD, including but not limited to troining, equipment, supervision, ond policy.


ii) OIPA sholl be outhorized to regulorly porticipote in the BPD UOF Review Boord process
by ottending meetings ondf or reviewing determinotions mode by the BPD UOF Review
Boord.


iii) OIPA sholl report publicly on its involvement in the BPD UOF review process including
determinotions mode by BPD UOF reviewers in o monner consistent with oll opplicoble
conf identiolity requirements.


BPD Eorly lntervention Systems
i) OIPA sholl be involved in the review ond evoluotion of doto, olerts, ond reports reloted


to the BPD Eorly lntervention System (ElS).


ii) The OIPA mqy use the EIS doto to determine whether conduct or disciplinory issues


regording BPD or individuol officers exist.
iii) OIPA sholl regulorly report on the stotus ond effectiveness of the BPD EIS in o monner


consistent with oll opplicoble confidentiolity requirements.


Auditing
i) OIPA sholl hove the necessory occess ond outhority to review BPD doto, records, ond


stoffing informotion for the purpose of conducting systemic oudits of BPD functions thot
impoct the quolity of the Deportment ond the services provided by BPD to the public.


ii) OIPA sholl hove the necessory occess ond outhority to monitor ony oudits conducted by
the BPD regording BPD functions thot impoct the quolity of the Deportment ond the
services provided by the BPD to the public.


iii) OIPA sholl be outhorized to publicly report on the results of ony oudits or monitored
oudits os described in this section in o monner consistent with oll opplicoble
conf identio lity requirements.


Mediotion
OIPA sholl develop o voluntory olternotive dispute resolution (ADR) process for resolving
comploints which involve conduct thot moy most oppropriotely be corrected or modified
through olternotive meons. OIPA sholl review o droft of the voluntory ADR process with the
BPCRB ond BART Police Associotions ond secure their concurrence prior to implementotion.


rJ


iii)


iv)


E.


F.


G.


H.


ADMINLEGAL 114868.7 Poge | 4







K.


Appeol of lA Findings


Any comploinont moy file on oppeol of on internol investigotion conducted by BPD with
the OIPA. Upon receipt of on oppeol, OIPA sholl:


i) Review the completed BPD investigotion.
ii) Determine whether further investigotion is worronted ond, if necessory, ensure thot o


timely, thorough, complete, obiective ond foir follow-up investigotion into the comploint
or ollegotion is conducted. A follow-up investigotion moy, ot the discretion of the lPA,


be conducted by the OIPA, the BPD or ony other competent investigotive ogency.


iii) Provide timely updotes on the progress of the review ond ony follow-up investigotion


to the comploinont ond the BPD employee who wos the subiect of the originol
investigotion, to the extent permitted by low unless the specific focts of the investigotion
would prohibit such notificotion.


iv) Bosed on the review of the originol investigotion ond, where oppropriote, the results of
ony follow-up investigotion, OIPA sholl reoch on independent finding os to the focts of
the underlying ollegotion or comploint.


v) lndependent investigotive findings of "Sustoined" mode'by OIPA sholl include


recommendotions for corrective/punitive oction, up to ond including terminotion where


worronted. When the evidence does not support the ollegotions of misconduct, the IPA


sholl recommend o finding of Unfounded, Exoneroted, or Not Sustoined.


vi) All BPD investigotive findings lhot ore oppeoled to OIPA sholl be subiect to the
procedures defined in Chopter I -04(B).


Criticol lncidents


i) The IPA sholl be notified immediotely by BPD personnel to respond to the investigotive
scene(s) of ony BPD officer-involved shooting, use of force resulting in life threotening
iniury, use of force resulting in bodily iniury requiring tronsportotion ond odmittonce to
o hospitol, , or in-custody deoth.


ii) The BPD officer in chorge ot the investigotive scene(s) sholl provide the IPA ond OIPA
sfoff with occess to the investigotive scene(s) equivolent to BPD lnternol Affoirs
lnvestigotors upon their orrivol ot the investigotive scene.


iii) The OIPA sholl hove the outhoriiy to monitor oll ospects of the ensuing investigotion thot
the BPD lnternol Affoirs investigotors hove outhority to monitor while the investigotion is


in progress. The BPD will gront the OIPA occess equivolent to BPD lnternol Affoirs
investigotors to the site(s) of oll interviews reloted to o criticol incident involving BPD


personnel.


iv) The IPA moy observe interviews of employees, public comploinonts, ond witnesses thot
ore conducted by BPD lnternol Affoirs lnvestigotors ond moy submit questions to the
interviewer to be osked by the interviewer in occordonce with stote ond federol low.


Recommendotions on Procedures, Proctices ond Troining
i) OIPA sholl develop specific recommendotions concerning policies, procedures, proctices,


ond troining of BPD personnel. The gool of the obove OIPA recommendotions, sholl be
improving the professionolism, sofety record, effectiveness, ond occountobility of BPD
employees. OIPA sholl consult with the Chief of Police ond other stokeholders ond sholl
present its recommendotions to the BPCRB for review ond comment.


ADMINLEGAT 114868.7 Poge | 5







Should BPD reiect policy recommendotions submitted by OIPA, the IPA moy forword the
recommendotions to the GM ond/or the Boord for further considerotion.
OIPA sholl hove the outhority ond responsibility to provide input to the BPD during the
development of ony significont BPD-initioted policy creotion or revision.
OIPA sholl publicly report on its involvement in the development ond revision of BPD
policies ond sholl report onnuolly regording ony outstonding recommendotions ond the
degree to which they were endorsed by the BPCRB ond occepted by BpD.


BART Police Associotions
i) The IPA sholl meet periodicolly with ond seek inpuf from the BART Police Monogers


Associotion (BPMA) ond the BART Police Officers Associotion (BPOA) regording the work
of OIPA.


ii) OIPA sholl report onnuolly on whether meetings with BPMA ond BPOA occurred.


Community Outreoch
OIPA sholl develop ond mointoin o regulor progrom of community outreoch ond
communicotion for the purpose of listening to ond communicoting with members of the
public in the BART service oreo. The OIPA community outreoch progrom sholl set out to
educote the public regording the responsibilities ond services of OIPA ond the functions
of the BPCRB.


Reporting
The IPA sholl prepore onnuol reports to the Boqrd ond the public in o monner consistent
with oll opplicoble confidentiolity requirernenis, which prior to being finolized sholl be
reviewed, in droft form, by the BPCRB. To the extent permitted by low, reports sholl
include the number ond types of coses filed, number of open coses, the disposition of
ond ony oction token on coses including recommendotions for corrective/punitive oction,
ond the number of coses beinE oppeoled; findings of trends ond potterns onolyses; ond
recommendotions to chonge BPD policy ond procedures, os oppropriote. The reports


' sholl include oll comploints regording police officers received by OIPA, BPD, BART
District Secretory (DSO), ond other District deportments.


Public Stotements
The IPA sholl be outhorized to moke public stotements regording ony ospect of BPD
policies ond proctices, the Citizen Oversight Model, ond in coniunction with ony public
report or finding: in o monner consistent with oll opplicoble confidentiolity requirements.


Chopter l-05 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN OIPA AND THE BPCRB


A. OIPA ond the BPCRB sholl be estoblished ond operoted os seporote, complementory
entities \Mith different roles thot ore ond sholl remoin independent of one onother.


B. On o no less thon monthly bosis, the BPCRB sholl receive reports from OIPA in o monner
consistent with oll opplicoble confidentiolity requirements, including the number ond types
of coses filed, number of open coses, the disposition of ond ony oction token on coses,


recommendotions for corrective/punitive oction, including discipline ond dismissols, ond the
number of independent investigotions concluded by OIPA. The report sholl olso include the


ii)


iii)


iv)


L.


M.


N.


o.


ADMINLEGAL 114868.7 Pose | 6







number ond outcome of coses being oppeoled either to OIPA by members of the public,


the BPCRB or the Chief of Police pursuont to the oppeols process described in Chopter 1-


04(B), obove.
i) Reports sholl include oll comploints received by OIPA, BPD, BPCRB, DSO, ond other


District deportments.
ii) For trocking ond timeliness purposes, this report sholl include the number of doys thot


hove elopsed between the dote of the comploint ond the dote of the written report to
the BPCRB.


OIPA moy present reports reloted to O|PA-monitored BPD investigotions to the BPCRB in


closed session for its inpui ond feedbock. BPD personnel rnoy be present during the closed


session to respond to ony BPCRB inquiries regording the investigotion ond/or reloted
investig otive p rocesses.


OIPA sholl, for informotionol purposes, promptly notify the Choir of the BPCRB whenever


the IPA is informed of o criticol incident os described in Chopter l -04(J).


The BPCRB ond OIPA will coordinote community outreoch octivities ond communicotion with


the public.


Chopter l-06 REIATIONSHIP BETWEEN OIPA, BPD, DSO, AND OTHER DISTRICT DEPARTMENTS


A. The Chief of Police, DSO ond other Executive Monogers with employees thot routinely
receive comments/comploints from the public sholl eoch, iointly with the lPA, develop
stondord operoting procedures to govern the relotionship ond flow of communicotion


regording comploints involving police officers between OIPA ond eoch of their respective


deportments.
B. OIPA ond the Chief of Police sholl provide eoch other with timely notificotion of comploints,


investigotions, oppeols ond findings ond with such informotion ond cooperotion os is


oppropriote ond necessory.


Chopter l-O7 COOPERATION WITH OIPA :


OIPA sholl hove unfettered occess to police reports ond police personnel records. All porties
who hove occess lo confidentiol informotion sholl comply with oll confidentiolity
requirements of the BPD, the District, ond oll stote ond federol lows.
During on investigotion, oll involved BPD personnel sholl be compelled to meet ond
cooperote with OIPA in occordonce with Government Code Section 3300-33.l3.
No person sholl directly or indirectly force, or by ony threots to person or property, or in
ony monner willfully intimidote, influence, impede, deter, threoten, hoross, obstruci or
prevent, onother person, including o child, from freely ond truthfully cooperoting with OIPA.


Chopter l-O8 INDEPENDENCE OF OIPA


A. The IPA ond ony employee of the OIPA sholl, ot oll times, be totolly independent. All
investigotions, findings, recommendotions, ond requests mode by OIPA sholl reflect the
views of OIPA olone.


B. No District employee or Director sholl ottempt to unduly influence or undermine the
independence of the IPA or ony employee of the OIPA in the performonce of his or her
duties ond responsibilities set forth herein.


c.


D.


E.


A.


B.


c.


ADMINTEGAL 114868.7 Poge | 7







C. DSO stoff sholl perform odministrotive ond orgonizotionol tosks for the BPCRB, which will
be intended to clorify, strengthen, ond mointoin the delineotion ond seporotion of the
BPCRB ond OIPA.


Chopter l-09 CONFIDENTIAIITY OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION


OIPA sholl comply \Mith oll stote ond federol lows requiring confidentiolity of low enforcement
records, informotion, ond confidentiol personnel records, ond respect the privocy of oll individuols
involved.


Chopter l-IO CODE OF ETHICS


The employees of OIPA sholl odhere to the Notionol Associotion for Civilion Oversight of Low
Enforcement (NACOLE) Code of Ethics.


Nothing in this Model is intended to deloy or interfere with $e timely investigotion ond disposition
of internol offoirs investigotions of olleged police misconduct. OIPA ond the BPCRB sholl iointly
develop o timeline for completion of the disciplinqry process thot will be concluded within 365 doys
from the time of discovery by BPD lnternol Affoirs, BPD supervisory level personnel, the OIPA, or
the BPCRB.


Chopter 2-Ol BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD


A BART Police Citizen Review Boord sholl be estoblished by the Boord of Directors to increose
visibility for the public into the delivery of BART police services, to provide community porticipotion
in the review ond estoblishment of BPD policies, procedures, proctices ond initiotives, ond to
receive citizen comploints ond ollegotions of misconduct by BPD employees. Results of
investigotions into ollegotions of misconduct by BPD employees ond recommendotions for
corrective/punitive oction, including discipline, will be reviewed by the BPCRB. The members of the
BPCRB sholl odhere to the Notionol Associotion for Civilion Oversight of Low Enforcement (NACOLE)


Code of Ethics ond comply with oll opplicoble stote ond federol lows regording confidentiolity.


Chopter 2-02 APPOINTMENT OF BPCRB MEMBERS


A. The BPCRB sholl report directly to the Boord.


B. The BPCRB sholl consist of eleven (11)members oppointed os follows:
i) Eoch BART Director sholl oppoint one (l) member.


ii) The BPMA ond BPOA sholl iointly oppoint one (1) member.


iii) There sholl be one (1) Public-ot-Lorge member to be oppointed by the Boord.


iv) All oppointments or re-oppointments to the BART Police Citizen Review Boord sholl be


for two-yeor terms. Those members oppointed by Directors representing odd numbered


ADMINLEGAL 114868.7 Poge I 8







Districts, os well os the Public-ot-Lorge member sholl hove their terms expire on June


30th of the respective even numbered yeor. Those members oppointed by Directors
from even numbered Districts, os well os the BART Police Associotions' member, sholl


hove their terms expire on June 30th of the respective odd numbered yeor.
v) Service on the BPCRB sholl be voluntory.
vi) A newly-elected Director moy reploce the seoted BPCRB oppointee representing their


District within ninety 90 colendor doys of toking office, otherwise the seoted BPCRB


member will continue to serve until expirotion of the opplicoble term, unless otherwise


disquolified os described herein


Chopter 2-O3 BPCRB MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS


A. Members of the BART Police Citizen Review Boord must reside in one of the three counties


thot moke up the BART District.


B. BPCRB members sholl ogree to odherelo the Code of Ethics described in Chopter 2-1O.


C. BPCRB members must be foir-minded ond obiective with o demonstroted commitment to
community service.


D. No person currently employed in o low enforcement copocity, either sworn or non-sworn,


sholl be eligible for oppointment to the BPCRB.


E. No current or former BPD employee shqllserve on the BPCRB, ond no relotive of ony current


or former BPD employee sholl serye on the BPCRB.2


F. All oppointees to the BPCRB sholl be subiect to bockground checks.


G. No person convicted of o felony sholl serve on ltre BPCRB.


H. Members serving on the BPCRB ore not required to be U.S. citizens.


Chopter 2-04 BPCRB MEIYIBER MEETING ATTENDANCE


BPCRB members moy not miss more thon three regulorly scheduled meeting per yeor.
i) The oppointment of ony BPCRB member who hos been obsent from three (3) regulor


meetings during the fiscol yeor, sholl outomoticolly expire effective on the dote thot
such obsence is reported by the OIPA to the DSO, except in the cose of on opproved
obsence or leove of obsence os described herein.


ii) The DSO sholl notify ony BPCRB member whose oppointmeni hos outomoticolly
terminoted, ond report to the Boord ond the BART Police Associotions thot o voconcy
exists on the BPCRB. The voconcy sholl then be filled in occordonce with Chopter 2-06.


Excused Absences from Regulorly Scheduled Meetings
i) A BPCRB Member moy request on excused obsence from their oppointing Director, ond


thot excuse sholl be tronsmitted to the DSO. Such excused obsences sholl be gronted
by the Boord President regording the Public-ot-Lorge oppointee, or from the Police
Associotions regording the Police Associotions' oppointee. Such excused obsences will
not count ogoinst the member's obsence limitotions.


ii) BPCRB members moy be gronted o leove of obsence by their oppointing Director not
to exceed three (3) months. When such o leove of obsence is gronted, the seot moy be


2 Relotives include spouse, domestic portner, child, porent, brother, sister, grondporent, step-porent, step-child, legol
guordion, fother-in-low ond mother-in-low.


ADMINLEGAT 114868.7


A.


B.


Poge | 9







filled for the period of such leove ond moy be filled in occordonce with the procedure
described herein, subieci to rotificotion by the Boord. Such leoves of obsence sholl be
gronted by the Boord President regording the Public-ot-Lorge oppointee, or from the
Police Associotions regording the Police Associotions' oppointee.


Chopter 2-05 BPCRB VACANCIES


A. Voconcies on the BPCRB sholl be filled for the unexpired portion of the term, subiect to
rotificotion by the Boord.


B. A voconcy in o seot representing one of the nine BART Disiricts sholl be filled by the Director
whose oppointee hos ceosed to serve.


C. A voconcy in the seot thot represents the BART Police Associotions sholl be filled by the
BART Police Associotions.


A voconcy in the seot representing the Public-ot-Lorge sholl be filled by the Boord from the
pool of quolified opplicotions submitted during the most recent opplicotion period for the
Public-ot-Lorge seot. lf no quolified Public-ot-Lorge oppliconts ore ovoiloble or willing to
serve, the Boord sholl solicit new opplicotions.
The IPA moy provide input to the Boord regording the performonce of ony BPCRB member
who seeks reoppointment.


F. The Boord should consider o BPCRB member's onnuol outreoch octivity when deciding
whether to reoppoint o member to the BPCRB.


Chopter 2-O5 SCOPE


The BPCRB sholl hove the outhority to exercise its duties ond responsibilities os outlined below,
regording low enforcement ond police octivities or personnel operoting under outhority of BART.


i:,


Chopler 2-OZ DUTIES AND RESPONSIBIIITIES


A. Comploints Received from Members of the Public
Any person moy file o comploint or ollegotion of wrongdoing ogoinst ony BPD employee
with the BPCRB. Upon receipt of o comploint or ollegotion, the BPCRB sholl immediotely turn
the comploint or ollegotion over to the OIPA, ond OIPA sholl proceed occording to Chopter
I -04 obove.


B. Recommendotions for Corrective Action
i) The IPA sholl submit his/her investigotive findings ond recommendotions to the BPCRB


for review in o confidentiol personnel meeting, where the processes described in


Chopter 1-0a(B)(ii-vi) including, but not limired to, oppeol procedures sholl opply.
ii) The BPCRB sholl onnounce eoch member's vote regording its occeptonce or reiection of


the OIPA findings ond recommendotions for discipline in open session, ond in coses in
which o non-unonimous moiority ogrees with the OIPA findings ond recommendotions,
the dissenting members should generote o memorondum including the rotionole for
diverging f rom the moiority opinion without divulging privileged, protected, or
confidentiol informotion ond evidence.


D.


E.


ADAAINLEGAL 114868.7 Poge I l0







C. Recommendotions on Policies, Procedures, Proctices ond Troining
i) The BPCRB sholl develop ond review recommendotions os to the policies, procedures,


ond proctices of BPD in consultotion with the lPA.


ii) The gool of BPCRB recommendotions sholl be to improve the professionolism, sofety
record, effectiveness, ond occountobility of BPD employees.


iii) The BPCRB moy moke recommendotions to the Chief of Police, GM, ond Boord, os


oppropriote.
iv) The BPCRB sholl review ond comment on oll odditions ond chonges to policy, procedures


ond proctices os well os oll new initiotives (including troining ond equipment) proposed


by BPD or OIPA ond moke recommendotions to the Boord.


D. Disogreements Regording Proposed Policies, Procedures, Proctices, ond Troining


The Boord sholl review ond resolve oll disogreements regording proposed policies,


procedures, proctices ond troining thot moy orise between the BPCRB ond the Chief of
Police, lPA, or GM. The Boord sholl moke the finol determinotion in oll such instonces.


E. BART Police Associotions


The BPCRB sholl meet periodicolly with ond seek input from the BPMA ond BPOA on issues


of interest to the porties. The BPCRB sholl report onnuolly on whether meetings with the


BPMA ond the BPOA occurred.


F. Community Outreoch
The BPCRB sholl develop ond mointoin o regulor progrom of community outreoch ond


communicotion for the purpose of lisiening to ond communicoting with members of the public


in the BART service oreo. The BPCRB community outreoch progrom sholl seek to educote the


public obout the responsibilities ond services of OIPA ond functions of the BPCRB.


i) The DSO will provide stoff support to ond focilitote troining for the BPCRB.


ii) The BPCRB should endeovor to conduct meetings in vorying locoles, where feosible to
increose exposure of its work to o wider orroy of community members.


G. Reporting
The BPCRB sholl file quorterly reports of its octivities with the DSO for distribution to the


Boord ond sholl prepore on onnuol report on its occomplishments ond octivities (including


recommendotions to improve BPD services) for presentotion to the Boord ond the public.


H. Monitor Study Recommendotions


The BPCRB sholl report on the occomplishments ond progress mode by BPD in implementing
recommendotions resulting f rom periodic studies thot moy be conducted to look ot
deportmentol policies, procedures, proctices, ond troining.


l. Public Stotements
The Choir of the BPCRB sholl be outhorized to moke public stotements on beholf of the
BPCRB regording the role ond processes of the BPCRB when on exigency to respond to on
inquiry is presented.


ADMINLEGAL 114868.7 Poge | 11







). Selection of the Chief of Police
The BPCRB (os well os the BART Police Associotions) sholl porticipote in on odvisory role in
the selection of the Chief of Police by interviewing finolist condidotes.


K. Stoff Support for the BPCRB


The DSO will provide stoff support to the BPCRB including but not limited to the following:
i) Focilitotion of troining for the BPCRB.


ii) Preporotion ond mointenonce of records of meetings of the BPCRB.
iii) Distribution of reporrs by the BPCRB to rhe Boord ond the public.
iv) Focilitotion of the opplicotion process for oppointment to the BPCRB ond coordinotion


of the selection ond rotificotion processes with the Boord.
v) Provision of troining including o curriculum designed for newly-oppointed BPCRB


members.


vi) Provision ond mointenonce of on ongoing in-service troining progrom.


Chopter 2-O8 REIATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BPCRB AND OtpA


A. No less thon monthly, the BPCRB sholl receive reports from the IPA including the number ond
types of coses filed, number of open coses, the disposition of ond ony oction token on coses,
recommendotions for corrective/punitive oction, including discipline ond dismissols, ond the
number of independent investigotions concluded by OlpA.
i) The report sholl olso include *re number of coses being oppeoled either to OlpA by


members of the public or by the BPCRB pursuont to the oppeols process described in
Chopter I -04(B), obove.


ii) OIPA reports to the BPCRB sholl inctude oll comploints received by OIPA, BpD, the
BPCRB, DSO, ond other District deportments.


iii) This report sholl olso include the number of doys thot hove elopsed between the dote
of the comploint ond the repod to the BPCRB.


iv) OIPA reports sholl include the degree to which OIPA ond BPCRB disciplinory
recommendotions were implemented by BPD.


B. The Choir of the BPCRB sholl, for informotionol purposes, be promptly informed by the OlpA
of oll criticol incidents involving BPD.


C. The BPCRB moy report to the Boord of Directors' Personnel Committee on the performonce
ond effectiYeness of OIPA.


D. The BPCRB (os well os the BART Police Associotions) sholl porticipote in on odvisory role in
the process of selecting oll successors to the first lPA.


E. The BPCRB will porticipote in o regulor progrom of community outreoch ond communicotion
with the public, in coniunction with OIPA.


F. The BPCRB sholl moke forms ovoiloble ot BPCRB meetings to occept comploints ond
ollegotions of police misconduct from the public ond sholl forword ony received comploints
to OIPA for oppropriote oction.


ADMINLEGAT 114868.7 Poge I 12







Chopter 2-O9 CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS AND INFORIYIATION


Members of the BPCRB sholl comply with oll stote ond federol lows requiring confidentiolity of low
enforcement records, informotion, ond confidentiol personnel records, ond sholl respect the privocy
of oll individuols involved.


Chopter 2-lO CODE OF ETHICS


The members of the BPCRB sholl odhere to the Notionol Associotion for Civilion Oversight of Low


Enforcement (NACOLE) Code of Ethics.


Chopler 3-Ol OVERSTGHT SYSTEM EVATUATTON


The Boord, with input from the BPCRB, lPA, BART Police Associotions, GM, DSO, comploinonts ond
the public will evoluote the BART Police citizen oversight structure eyery 3 yeors to determine
whether the need exists to moke chonges ond/or otherwise moke odiustments to the syslem to
improve its continued performonce. These evoluotions sholl in no woy be intended to eliminote the


BART Police citizen oversight structure.


ADMINLEGAL 114868.7 Poge I 13








BART Market Street Canopy + 
Escalator Program Update + 
Environmental Clearance


BART Board
June 28, 2018







Market Street Canopy + Escalator 
Program Update


Agenda
• Pilot Update
• Environmental Review for Market Street Canopy and 


Escalator Modernization Project
• Motion


2



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Tim: This is an update of the Market Street Canopy and Escalator Program, and we’re also asking the Board to take action on the environmental clearance.







Design Requirements


3


• Safety + Security (lighting,  
locks at top)


• Transparency/Visibility
• Vandalism
• Operational Requirements
• Weather + Splash
• Structural
• Maintainability
• Modularity
• Anti-climbability


• Ventilation
• Pigeon Control
• Finish Quality
• Cost Value
• Lifespan
• Better Market Street
• Impacts to Businesses
• Art Opportunities
• Performance



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Tim: Earlier, there was a design competition with San Francisco as our partners in this process.  18 different design requirements went into the development of the canopy structure.  There are 3 major types of requirements:  safety + security, maintenance + operations and community + placemaking.  Also, performance is key; lessons learned from the pilot will inform the design development of the subsequent canopies.  Shirley will cover the canopy pilot and canopy/escalator project.







Pilot Canopy Contract


• 2 locations (Powell + Civic Center)
• Partnership with San Francisco Municipal Transportation 


Agency (SFMTA), SF Public Works, SF Planning
• Cleared with a Categorical Exemption (Dec 2015)
• NTP March 2017
• Forecast completion – Summer 2018
• Pilot Project Lessons Learned:


• Security and Visibility
• City + local business concerns
• Unanticipated underground objects – abandoned pipes, shoring, 


sub-basement


4







5


Base


5



Presenter

Presentation Notes

We currently have two canopies under construction, one at Powell and the other at Civic Center.  They were cleared Dec 2015 with a categorical exemption and Notice to Proceed was issue March 2017.  We anticipated completion spring 2018, however during the course of construction, we encountered some obstacles, so completion is scheduled for summer of this year.  I will quickly mention some of the project challenges.







City + Local Business Concerns
Barricade Changes


6



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Originally the board was interested in an art treatment of the barricades.  However, the community and businesses did not want solid walls with art; they wanted as much transparency as possible to address safety and security issues.  Based on their input, we went from portholes to fencing as well as signage.







Unforeseen Subsurface Obstacles


7


Misc. Utility 
obstacles



Presenter

Presentation Notes

We also encountered numerous unidentified or abandoned utilities in the ground.  This caused delay in identifying the owner of utility, and redesign around it if the pipe was active.  This information was not available in the plans and drawings provided by the City.







Column installation


8



Presenter

Presentation Notes

However, we are making progress, as we are now above ground and the steel beams at Civic Center are being erected as well as the columns at Powell Station. This concludes the update on the pilot canopy project.  I would like to turn your attention to slide 10.







Market Street Canopy & Escalator 
Program Update


• Project Description – Market Street Canopy + 
Escalator Project


• Environmental Review
• Impacts + Mitigation Measures
• Public Participation
• Motion


9







Market Street Canopy + Escalator Project 
Locations


10 



Presenter

Presentation Notes

This is a picture of the Market Street Canopy and Escalator projects.  All entrances to the stations will receive canopies and the pilot canopies are highlighted in green.  There 22 canopies and 22 street escalators to be installed along with 18 platform escalators.  (There are two escalators on the Hallidade Plaza entrance that belong to Muni and therefore is not being covered by BART.)







11


2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026/
2027


Ongoing City / Community Engagement Through 2026 


Board Actions
Environmental 


Review
(CEQA)


June 28: Adopt 
CEQA Review & 
Approved Project


Procurement,
Bid, Award


Escalator 
Reno


Final Design


Construction & Integration (40 escalators, 8 years, approx. $135M)
Funding – Measure RR, SF Funds, Local Partnership Program Funds


Canopy + Escalator Project Timeline


Construction & Integration (22 canopies, 6 years, approx. $45M)
Funding Prop 1B, Measure RR and SF Bond Funds


Canopy


Final Design


Procurement,
Bid, Award


Award 
Contract


Award 
Contract



Presenter

Presentation Notes

This project is broken into two construction contracts.  We are issuing two contracts as a specialized trade is needed for the escalators versus the canopies.  The escalator design contract is ahead of the canopy contract as there are fewer design issues.  With the canopies, each location has a site specific design to address fire access, traffic and known underground utilities. The duration is driven by a constraint of closing one entrance at a station at a time and the number of available crews,  which the industry has told us to assume three crews for the four downtown stations given the amount of construction in the bay area. 







Before After


Canopy at Orpheum Theater Entrance


12



Presenter

Presentation Notes

This is a rendering of a before and after view at the Orpheum Theater Entrance.  As we continue to meet with the business community, BART is working on adding a escalator at this location and this will increase the escalator count by 1 to 23 street escalators.    







Next Steps


• Incorporate Lessons Learned – unforeseen obstacles, 
permitting, fencing, involving Fire/Police earlier in design 
review, more responsive to community and business 


• Work with local stakeholders to select art for canopy soffit
• Complete funding agreement with SFMTA for $30M towards 


canopy contract 
• Explore potential for a green roof with SF Public Works
• Work with SFMTA to add an option for 4 MUNI platform 


escalators at Embarcadero station
• Complete Environmental Approval & Project Adoption (today)
• Advertise Escalator Contract 
• Advertise Canopy Contract


13



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Our next steps are to incorporate lessons learned and mitigation measures into the contract as well as other outstanding items.  Tim Chan will now address Environmental adoption and project approval today so the two contracts can be completed and advertised this fall (Aug & Nov).







Environmental Review


• California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
• Identify significant/potentially significant impacts
• Recommend mitigation measures to avoid significant 


effects
• Documentation/Public Input


• Initial Study analyzes 18 resource areas; includes 1 technical 
study:


• Cultural Resources


14



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Tim: We are performing a CEQA process as there are no federal funds in these projects.  We studied 18 resource areas and performed one cultural resource study to identify potentially significant impacts.







Environmental  Mitigation Measures 


• 2 resource areas may result in significant impacts
• Mitigation measures have been identified that reduce 


impacts to less-than-significant
• Air Quality


• Apply “Best Management Practice” air quality 
construction control measures to reduce 
dust/construction equipment emissions


• Biological Resources
• Avoid tree or shrub removal or pruning during the bird 


nesting period
• Perform survey if construction occurs during nesting 


15



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Tim: Our analysis identified 2 resource areas (air quality and biological resources) that may result in significant impacts however we have identified mitigation measure that can reduce the impacts to less-than-significant. 







Public Participation


• Public Review & Comment:
• Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) 


released April 30 for 30 day public review period
• Notice of Availability, translated into 2 other languages, was 


published in San Francisco Chronicle and sent to addresses 
within ¼ mile of project


• Stakeholders notified by email
• Document and information posted at 


www.bart.gov/sfentrances
• Public comment meeting held May 16 at the San Francisco 


Public Library
• All public comments is addressed in Final IS/MND


16



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Tim: We released a draft initial study/mitigated negative declaration on April 30 for a 30 day public review period and held a public comment meeting on May 16 at the SF library. We have received comments from 4 entities, and our response to comments is addressed in the Final IS/MND.



http://www.bart.gov/sfentrances





Motion


Having reviewed and considered the information contained in 
the IS/MND and the Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Plan, 
the BART Board of Directors hereby:
• Finds that on the basis of the whole record before the Board, there 


is no substantial evidence that the proposed BART Market Street 
Canopy and Escalator Project will have a significant effect on the 
environment (the potential significant impacts identified can all be 
mitigated to less-than-significant levels following implementation of 
project-specific mitigation measures identified in the IS/MND); and


• Finds that the IS/MND reflects the Board’s independent judgment 
and analysis; and


• Adopts the IS/MND ; and
• Adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan; and
• Approves the Market Street Canopy and Escalator Project


17



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Tim: Today, we ask the Board to take the actions outlined in this slide, including:Adopting the IS/MNDAdopting the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan that was sent to you last week; andApproving the Market Street Canopy and Escalator Project





		BART Market Street Canopy + �Escalator Program Update + Environmental Clearance

		Market Street Canopy + Escalator Program Update

		Design Requirements

		Pilot Canopy Contract

		Slide Number 5

		City + Local Business Concerns�Barricade Changes

		Unforeseen Subsurface Obstacles

		Column installation

		Market Street Canopy & Escalator Program Update

		Market Street Canopy + Escalator Project Locations

		Canopy + Escalator Project Timeline

		�      Before			    After�

		Next Steps

		Environmental Review

		Environmental  Mitigation Measures 

		Public Participation

		Motion

		�      Before			      After�






Art Policy Revision


• June 28, 2018


• BART Planning, Development and Construction







Overview


1. Master Plan – Program Recommendations


2. Art Program Funding Proposal/Policy Amendment


3. Recommendation


2







What We Heard: 
An Impactful Art Program for Transit


1. Art has integral value to successful project delivery


2. Project design enhancement through engagement of artists 
provides important solutions to significant and desirable outcomes 
including Safety, Access, Equity, Customer Satisfaction, 
Community Engagement, Placemaking, and Wayfinding


3. Implementation throughout the District and a range of project 
sizes is a key aspect of equity and programmatic impact.


4. Integration to BFS reduces costs and increases enhancements


5. Developers have full control of percent for art implementation on-
site for most advantageous design enhancement


3







Integrate art seamlessly into the 
design of new stations and station 
modernization


Create opportunities to show changing 
art at stations and construction 
enclosures, and encourage different 
types of performances 


Feature community arts in the system 
– artwork with or by community 
stakeholders


Continued engagement with the 
existing art collection


How to Include the Arts


Employing Arts 
& Cultural 


Experiences to 
Make BART a 
Better System


4







Capital Funds:
 2% of construction cost in and adjacent to stations 
 0.25% of construction costs for visible trackway projects (guideways), 


shops & yards, substations & vents (above grade), train car procurement 
(306), and other locations visited by riders or seen by community
 Applied to projects with visibility or direct impact to community or customers. 
 Not applied to life safety or system critical (e.g., train control), or ADA required compliance. 
 Calculated at 35% design with no escalation. 
 Allow for pooling of funds to reach stations and communities where no capital work 


occurring


Operating Funds:
Minimum $100,000 annual funding for art conservation and maintenance, 
collection management, and curated programming. 


Recommended Art Program 
Funding Sources - BART


5







Developer Funds:
• BART TOD in cities with existing private % for art must to retain those funds 


onsite to enhance the TOD or adjacent BART station. 
• 1% of TOD construction cost to implement public art or art amenity onsite or in 


the adjacent BART station in cities without a private % for art requirement.


Partnerships:


Develop a robust partnership program to engage partner agencies and 
organizations to maximize funding opportunities including community, private, 
government, and foundations. 


Recommended Art Program 
Funding Sources - External


6







Integrated Art Changing Art & 
Programming


Community Arts Collection 
Management


CIP: % from Select
Capital Projects


Partnerships:
Local Public &


Private % for Art


Partnerships:
Local Public &


Private % for Art


Operating 
Funds


Partnerships:
BIDs/CBDs, 


corporate sponsors


Partnerships:
Advertising, 


Communications, & 
BARTable


Partnerships:
Community &


neighborhood groups


CIP: 
Major 


Conservation as 
Capital Project


Partnerships:
Local Public &


Private % for Art


Partnerships:
Cultural institutions, 
Colleges, Artists & 


Grants


Partnerships:
Grants


Partnerships:
Grants


Developer Funds:
TOD


Operating Funds Developer Funds: 
TOD


Funding Resources by 
Program Elements 


7







% Hard 
Costs CIP


Budgeted
Projects


Potential
Projects


Total Budgeted
& Potential


Percent of 
Total 15 yr
CIP


2% + 
0.25%


$321,000 $585,000 $906,000 .08%


1.5% + 
0.25%


$300,000 $466,000 $766,000 .07%


1%+.25% $161,000 $283,000 $453,000 .04%


* Source BART FY17 CIP - Forecast Funding by Program, total budgeted & non-budgeted projects $17,850,000,000. 
Railcars 15 year at 0.25% = $3.2M


Capital Fund Percent for Art 
Annual Funding Forecast:


8







Approve the proposed amendment to the BART Art in Transit Policy.
Funding:
 Capital Funds. 


• 2% of construction cost for projects at stations and areas adjacent to stations
• 0.25% of construction cost for guideways; shops and yards; visible vent 


structures & substations
• 0.25% of new train car procurement.


 Operating Funds. Minimum $100,000 annual allocation from Operating 
Budget for art conservation and maintenance, collection management, and 
curated programming. 


 Partnerships. Annual plan to engage partners to maximize funding 
opportunities from outside sources. 


 TOD. 1% of TOD construction cost for design enhancement for public art 
onsite or in the adjacent BART station in cities without existing requirement.


RECOMMENDATION


9







10


Comments & Questions?





		Art Policy Revision

		Overview

		What We Heard: �An Impactful Art Program for Transit

		Slide Number 4

		Recommended Art Program �Funding Sources - BART

		Recommended Art Program �Funding Sources - External

		Funding Resources by �Program Elements 

		Capital Fund Percent for Art �Annual Funding Forecast:�

		RECOMMENDATION �

		Slide Number 10






Sustainability Action Plan


June 28, 2018







Agenda


• Background
• Overview of Sustainability Action Plan
• Targets
• Priority Actions
• Implementation & Governance
• Discussion


2







Background


• Strategic Plan (2015) includes “advance sustainability” as 
one of the strategies


• Sustainability Policy (April, 2017) Vision: “BART is committed 
to advancing regional sustainability …” through high level 
goals set out according to the APTA sustainability categories


• Sustainability Action Plan (Dec, 2017): The Plan includes 
specific types of projects that BART has/is/will implement to 
pursue and achieve the APTA sustainability categories goals 
and BART specific targets


• The Plan is posted to the website* and a Memo was emailed to the 
Directors on December 28, 2017


3*Visit www.bart.gov/sustainability/policies to download the Executive Summary or full Plan.



http://www.bart.gov/sustainability/policies





Overview of the Plan 


4


TARGETS
• Time Horizon: 2015 (base line year) to 2025
• Types of Targets: 


o Committed – Based on commitment to 
high scoring actions, implementation is 
constrained by potential funding 
limitations


o Aspirational – Assumes full plan 
implementation and fewer budget 
constraints 


ACTIONS
• The Plan is broken down into 55 Actions covering the seven Sustainability 


Categories
• 20 Priority Actions are highlighted as near-term focus areas
• Different BART departments lead in the implementation of Actions in their area 


of control 







2025 Targets


5* Compared to 2025 Business as Usual projections


Resource Conservation – Energy and GHG 
Emissions


85% | 89% Reduce Total GHG Emissions per vehicle revenue mile.*
4% | 6% Reduce District Energy use per vehicle revenue mile.*


Resource Conservation – Water 6% | 17% Reduce District Water Use.*


Emissions and Pollution Control To Be Determined Reduce District Waste (Total Tons/Vehicle 
Revenue Mile); and Increase Landfill diversion rate.


Materials and Construction Operations 
Optimization 


100% Train BART Project Delivery staff in BART Facilities Standards 
(BFS) Sustainability Controls.


Extreme Weather Adaptation and 
Resilience


100% Implement High Priority Actions in the BART Local Hazard 
Mitigation Plan.


Smart Land Use and Livable 
Neighborhoods 


24% Reduce per passenger GHG emissions associated with access 
to stations by shifting passengers to greener modes of 
transportation and developing TOD adjacent to stations.*


Patron Experience 100% Meet all adopted Performance Standards for both System 
Safety and Patron Comfort.







Priority Actions


6


Resource Conservation – Energy and 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions


Increase Capacity to Support Regional 
Greenhouse Gas Goals


Adopt a Strategic Energy Plan


Make Renewable Energy Purchases


Invest in On-site Energy Generation


Invest in District Lighting Retrofits


Onboard new Energy Efficient Train Cars


Resource Conservation – Water


Regularly Audit Water Use and Correct 
Issues


Upgrade Water Fixtures


Emissions and Pollution Control


Support Solid Waste Reduction


Improve Recycling at All District Shops and 
Yards


Clean and Reuse Water







Priority Actions


7


Smart Land Use and Livable 
Neighborhoods


Improve Station Character and Community 
Fit


Continue to Lead the Region in Transit-
Oriented Development


Connect to Community – Station Access


Patron Experience


Create Cleaner Station Environments


Create Safer Station Environments


Materials and Construction Operations 
Optimization


Update the BART Facilities Standards (BFS) 
for Construction Activities


Develop Sustainability Design Guidance


Extreme Weather Adaptation and 
Resilience


Coordinate with Regional Agencies in 
Climate Adaptation Planning and 
Implementation


Conduct Hazard Mitigation Planning







Implementation & Governance


• Actions status will be assessed and reported annually 
against 2025 Targets


• All annual reporting will be presented to the 
Sustainability Executive Committee


• Annually, the Sustainability Group will work with other 
teams to support inclusion of Plan actions into annual 
work plans and budgets


• Every five years, the Sustainability Action Plan and 
Sustainability Policy will be reviewed and updated as 
needed


8





		Slide Number 1

		 Agenda

		 Background

		 Overview of the Plan 

		 2025 Targets

		Priority Actions

		Priority Actions

		Implementation & Governance






Electric Vehicle Charging 
Update


June 28, 2018







Agenda


• California Context
• BART Sustainability 
• Pilot Project: Warm Springs/S. Fremont Station
• Lessons Learned
• Near-term opportunities
• Trends and Rider Feedback on EV Charging 
• Recommendations


2







California Policy


Zero-Emission Vehicle (ZEV) and Infrastructure targets:
• SB 1275 (2014): By 2023, 1 million ZEVs; Clean Vehicle Rebate Program 
• Executive Order B-16-12: By 2025, 1.5 million ZEVs on the road
• Executive Order B-48-18: By 2025, 250,000 EV charging stations and by 


2030, 5 million ZEVs on the road


Funding:
• BAAQMD, Electrify America, PG&E


GHG Emissions Reduction Targets
• AB 32 (2006): By 2020, reduce emissions to 1990 levels
• SB 32 (2016): By 2030, reduce emissions 40% below 1990 levels


3







BART Sustainability Action Plan 


4


• Long-term sustainability opportunities divided into 7 categories and 55 
Actions to be implemented between 2015 to 2025


• Priority Actions are current 5-year 
focus areas for each category


• 20 Priority Actions identified according 
to their impact, co-benefits, feasibility, 
funding and visibility


• Relevant Action: RCE 14 Implement EV 
Charging Policy (not a Priority Action)


• BART’s Access Policy requires 
demonstration of reduction in GHG 
emissions due to mode shift







Pilot Project: Warm Springs/S. Fremont


• 20 Dual Port, 2 Single Port Level 2 EV charging stations


• 42 parking spaces (including 3 ADA spaces)


• Active since mid-April 2017


• Permitting cost of single day ahead reserve EV charging and parking: $6.00, 
effective Monday to Friday, 4:00am - 3:00pm


5


Project Breakdown Approx. Cost
Readiness infrastructure/ parking 
stall ($6,000)


Charging stations installation/parking 
stall $13,000*


3rd Party Maintenance and Network 
Services (3-years) $68,000*


BART Resident Engineer and M&E 
Review ($24,000)


EV Parking Revenue (1 year) $30,000


Electricity (4/19/17 – 5/31/18) ($13,000)


*Covered by BAAQMD Grant ($250K) & RM2 funding ($350K)







Lessons Learned


• Cost effectiveness: 
o Significant staff time as stand alone projects; integrating EV infrastructure into 


existing/ongoing BART projects is more efficient and cost effective


o Parking permit costs currently do not recover cost outlay 


• Third-party funding options:
o BAAQMD (Warm Springs) – requires matching fund


o Electrify America (HMC Component Repair Shop (CRS)) – limited by type of use and zip code


o PG&E – conduit/underground infrastructure, not charging stations


• ADA requirements: 
o State regulations require at least 1 additional ADA space (no conversion) for the first 4 EV 


charging spaces (requirements increase with additional EV charging spaces)


• Optimize avoided GHG emissions: 
• Enable daily BART commuters to reduce their GHG emissions during peak drive times and 


maximize number of daily BART commuters to charge their EVs


6







Near-Term Opportunities


Employee EV charging: HMC CRS
• Conduit/electrical infrastructure installed 


as part of the building construction


• Install 3 charging stations (4 parking stalls 
including 1 ADA) late Summer/early Fall 
2018


• Funding: Electrify America


7


Rider EV charging: Antioch & Lafayette 
• Conduit/electrical infrastructure installed as part of recently constructed 


solar projects


• Plan for 2 charging stations (3 parking stalls including 1 ADA) at each station


• Funding: pursuing Electrify America







Near-Term Opportunities
Valet Service for EV charging stations


8


• Challenges: 
o BART commuters park at stations 


for many hours at a time (often 
8-10 hours) 


o ADA requirement of additional 
ADA spaces particularly in older 
parking lots


• Solution: 
o Pilot valet program (at Lafayette)
o Multiple EVs charged at one 


charging station daily
o Move ADA vehicles to be 


charged without adding 
additional ADA spaces


Project Breakdown Approx. Cost


Readiness infrastructure/ 
parking stall


(Included in 
solar PPA)


Charging stations 
installation/parking stall $12,000**


3rd Party Maintenance and 
Network Services (3-years) $8,000**


BART Resident Engineer and 
M&E Review ($24,000)


Valet (2 shifts, 1 year pilot)* ($175,000)


EV Parking Revenue (1 year) $16,000


Electricity (1 year) ($12,000)
*Assume similar costs and program structure as elevator 
attendants pilot, excluding insurance.


**Potentially covered by Electrify America; lower costs than if 
BART were to procure on our own due to bulk purchase rates







High Level Summary 
EV Charging at Warm Springs


• Have not seen full uptake of EV charging at Warm Springs despite non-
EV parking lot at Warm Springs at max capacity by February 2018


• Expected main use case to be daily commuters but found that this is 
only one of the use cases


o Evening event/business function/client meeting charging


o Weekend charging


• Warm Springs is likely not representative of a typical BART station and 
we expect EV charging at other stations to be primarily used by daily 
commuters


• Design changes to permit pricing to increase adoption of EV charging 
stations at Warm Springs and recuperate electricity costs


9







EV Charging Trends at Warm Springs


• Total energy use is equivalent to 393,600 electric miles or avoiding about 
16,500 gallons of petroleum


• Average number of daily charging sessions has been increasing since 
opening last April; overall daily average is 21 sessions


• Only ~40% of the energy used for EV charging starts during Monday – Friday, 
4AM – 3PM


10


Times Average # EV cars 
charging (per period)


Average duration (hrs) 


M – F, 4A – 9A 9 per day 9.1


M – F, 9A – 3P 2 additional per day 4.3


M – F, 3P – 8P 6 additional per day 3.2


M – F, 8P – 4A 1 additional per day 1.8


Weekend 24 per day 5.6







BART Rider Feedback on EV Charging


• Surveys conducted over 5 weeks: 


1) Warm Springs Station: 74 responses
2) All other BART riders: 227 responses
3) Demographics: majority male, >$100K, self-identified as White or Asian


• >90% EV owners and >60% of non-EV owners responding to the systemwide survey are 
in favor of more EV charging (107, 104 responses)


• >90% EV owners from both surveys are more inclined to drive to a BART Station that has 
EV charging available (107, 30 responses) 


• A few dozen Warm Springs survey responders site difficulties with permitting and high 
charging costs as reasons for not charging their EVs


• Most system-wide survey responders favor lower prices for charging with min $8/daily 
and $130/monthly


• Majority system-wide survey responders (210 individuals) do not have reliable access to 
EV charging at home (52%) or at work (72%)


11







Next Steps for EV Charging at BART


Near-Term Initiatives
1) Install 3-4 charging stalls at HMC CRS, Antioch and Lafayette
2) Pilot valet EV charging program at Lafayette Station
3) Update fee structure:


• Warm Springs station: 
o Monday – Friday, 4am – 3pm: split-up parking stalls: 


1) $6 daily reserved (10 stalls) + $/kWh usage, 2) rest charge $3 parking 
fee + $/kWh


o Outside of parking enforcement times, charge for $/kWh usage only
o Provide EV monthly permit holder option (use $3 EV parking stalls) + 


$/kWh
• Future BART EV stations: 


o Monday – Friday, 4am – 3pm: $6 day-ahead reserve parking and $/kWh 
usage


o Or WSX structure depending on uptake
4) Staff pursuing third-party opportunities to fund EV charging station 


installations
12







Next Steps for EV Charging at BART


Long-Term Opportunities
1) Focus on EV Readiness – Install conduit when completing major 


parking lot renovations and planned construction that involve 
removing and updating existing concrete (including BART 
stations, park and rides, employee parking)


2) Install EV charging stations strategically (pending funding) 
3) Investigate options for BART non-revenue EVs and EV charging 


stations
4) Future car stacking with valet service to maximize charging 


station usage 


13





		Slide Number 1

		 Agenda

		 California Policy

		 BART Sustainability Action Plan 

		Pilot Project: Warm Springs/S. Fremont

		Lessons Learned

		�Near-Term Opportunities�

		Near-Term Opportunities�Valet Service for EV charging stations

		High Level Summary �EV Charging at Warm Springs

		EV Charging Trends at Warm Springs

		BART Rider Feedback on EV Charging

		Next Steps for EV Charging at BART

		Next Steps for EV Charging at BART






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT


MEMORAI\IDUM


TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 18,2018


S'ROM: Independent Police Auditor


SUBJECT: BART Police Citizen Review Board Public-atlarge Member Appoinlment


According to Chapter 1-05(G) of the Model, the Office of the lndepender$ Police Auditor (OIPA)
will fasilitate the application process for seats on the BART Police Citizen Review Board
(BPCRB) and will coordinate the selection process wtth the Otfice of the Distrist Secretary (DSO)
and the Board of Directors (Board).


As was conveyed to you via email on April 18, 2018, OIPA generated an Application for
Appointment to the BPCRB which was distributed widely throughoutthe District. The application
period closed on May I 1 , 201 8 and OIPA is in receipt of 8 applications. Regarding the process for
selectioru it is expected that the appointment for the Public at Large seat may be made by the Board
at its June 28, 2018 meeting with a term to begrn July 1, 2018.


The Board may duplicate the process for the Public at Large appointment that took place on
February 14,2013, as follows:


" Each applicant in attepdanpe may address the Board. OIPA will arrange for the Board to
view any pre-recorded applicant Statements.


r The Board members may complete a weighted voting form indicating their top 3 choices.


r The Diskict Secretary may tally the votes while the Board moves on to other business on
the agenda.


o The-District Secretary mqy provide the results of the vote to the Board President and those
results may be announced. '


r A motion may be made to appoint one person to the seat, and the Board may vote whether
to approve thit motion


All applications are attached hereto with an accompanying chart fbr your reference and


convenience. If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at 510-874-7471.


CC: Board Appointed Officers


1







Applicotions for Appoinlmenl lo rhe BART Police Citizen Review Boord - Public ot Lorge Seot - 2Ol8


I Cossody Toles Attorney Ooklond PhiAlpho Delto Low
Froternity


Meets oll
quolificotions


2 Michoel Forsyth lT Monoger Concord None provided Meets oll
quolificotions


3 leesho Romero Community
Portnership
Monooer


Son Froncisco SFPD Community
Policing Forum


Meets oll
quolificotions


4 Zochory Bruno Professor Son Moteo Son Moteo Community
College District Public
Sofety Tosk Force


Meets oll
quolificotions


5 Chengzhi
(George) Yong


Softwore Engineer Menlo Pork Son Bruno Bicycle ond
Pedestrion Sofety
Committee;
Menlo Pork Sister City
Committee


Meets oll
quolificotions


6 Erin Armstrong Policy (Violence
Prevention, Public
Protection, ond
Eorly Core &
Educotion)


Ooklond Field Director for
Meosure A, Alomedo
County;
Boord of Trustees, Mills
College;
Poinf Foundotion,
Scholor 2O14-18


Meets oll
quolificotions


7 Alexonder Post Attorney Son Froncisco Boord Member, CA
Attorneys for Criminol
Justice; Co-Choir, Justice
Committee-Democrotic
Sociolists of Americo, SF


Meets oll
quolificotions


Applicotion
received 2 minutes
ofter period
closed.


8 Melonie
Popper


Attorney Berkeley Notionol Lowyers Guild;
CA Employment
Lowyers Ass'n.;
Dortmouth Lowyers
Ass'n.; Block Lives


Motter


Meets oll
quolificotions


Applicotion
received 4 doys
ofter period
closed.


# Nome Occupotior Rasidenca
(city)


Relevcnl
Orgonizclionol
Membarchic{sl


Nolet







rrffiI#Flrr'r.'i?-r3lfttltlriElEiErfi{rr,Iliql:r.titr?t{r I. gi/z3/zwe 11: 34 i<tzqtqalw xHns pAcE a.,tgl


AFPTICATIOH FOR AFP OI}.ITTTIENT
TO THE


BAET FOLICE CITIZEIII REI/IEYI' BOA*.D
Ihe BART Board of Directors ostoblirhed the 0ART Folice Cilizen Revisw Eoard {SPCRB}
to increose visibilily for the public into the delivery of BART Police services, to provide
conrmunily purtlcipalion in the review ond esioblkhrnenl of BART Pollce Depnrlrnen?
Solicies. pracedures. procfices ond iniliotives, qnd fo receive citizen comploinls ond
ollegalions of rnisconduct by BART Polica Deporlment {BPD} ernployees. The BPCRB is


on odvisory commitiee lhot reporll lo lhe 8.1ftT Boord of Directors. Moetings are
generolly held once per rnonth, ond service ofi lhe Ef CRB is votr.rnlory.


Ar a volunleer rnember of this bosrd you will:


. Receive citizen cllegoiions of onduly police rnisconduclr Particltrote in rscomrngnding *ppropriote disciplinory ociionr Advire Bo,ord ol Directon, lndeoendent police Audilor ond potice Chief. Revigw, recornmend <:nd monilor implemenlotion of chongas la pollce
pdicies, procedures & proctices


, Meel periodicnlly with represen*otives nf ihe BART Police as$ocialions. PorlicipCIle in community c,ulreoch


All BPCR$ memberr muttreside in sne of ihe following lhroe countles: Alonreda, Contro
Cosio or Son Froncisco" BPCRB mambers murl be foir-minded ond objective wilh o
demonstraied romrnilrnent t6 community servlce. No person cunenlry employed in o
lcw enforcemenl ccpocity. either swo(n or non-sworn, shatl be eligible for oppcintment
fo the 8FCEB. No cr,rrent or former or ralctive of BART Police Depsrlmenl penonnel rnoy
serve gn the BPCR9. Appoinlees to the BPCRB sre subject to o bockground check and
must nol hovs (x6y febny conviclian . M*rnbers serving on ihe 8PCHB ora noi reouired
to be U.5. citirenl,


Pcrsanol Infornralior


First Nome: _Cassody_ Losl Nome;_Toles


Hon-e/MoilingAddresr: 


-f


EI
Occupo lion/Protession : *Atlorney_


1







s4/?312618 1,4t51?4A3q?


Senaral lnfonnstion/Qullifrcotionr


ln whot counl do you resideS -Alqmedo


Are you curently empkryed in o lsw enforcement copacity, ailher $fforn or non-surofft?


_Yes -\- No


Are you o current or lornner $PD ernployee? *Yes -X* tlo


Are lrou s relslivel of c cunent or formef 8PD employea? 


-Yes 
*X- No


H*ve you evar been convicied of s fe|ony? 


- 
Yes -X- No


f,eterences: Please provide
who <re quolified lo oi5$uss


lhe nsmes gnd conloct inform<riion of ltree {3} references
your condidocy for service an ihs BPCRB;


lrlorne: _floine Wolloce


Agdress:


Ncrne:*Potrick Joynl


Address:


Nopne: _Andrew Senos


Li:l ony orgonizolbns or groups lhot you belong tc or cte involved with thol you believe
heor relevance lo your condldocy for service on the BPCRB:


I srn on octlve cunent rnember of PhiAlpho Delfo Lqxr Frciernify, a froternol, t rvics,


ond prolessionglorgcniztrtion mofie up predominantly of ottorneys ond lsw studenls. I


believa in sorvlce to lhe community ond lhe low. Further, irr rny cspocity os a rnemb*r,


lleach closses on project fficnogern€nt, so rny r"nembenhip demonstrote! my abillty to


monoge o csselosd ond o firneline. balh of which ore key ttr invesligoiionr.


lfalafiver irrctude *pogra darnerl* pgilrer, chlld, p*ent, brothee ddcr, grondpccrt dcp-porad, dap-
child, hgcl gugrdsn. f{rthcr-fn-llrvr nnd molier-kr.lour.


't







ri{EEl''Elrr-Etr{iri7.|sf i:rrt}:EIF;rsEnmr?tnrl3?t{rol{.
" Aa/2?/2818 l1:S4 tq1id74B36? KH&S FA6E B3lSs


Briafiy explain your lnlererl in *erwing on lhe BPCf,.B:


I'm o firm belbver in justice, bolh sr o concepl ond in proclice. I believe lhul no


ons rs above lhe low, snd wilh the heodlines $nd nevrm slorles I keep reoding il


oppeots cleor lhol oversight of police ond low enforcernenl generolly needs to


hecome mo{e of o cullurul prioriiy. I believe in putting one'! rnonay where one's


mqulh ir, ond if gne believer ln o couse, one should work towords lhot couse, for


lhet reason lwould like lo work in the lield of police oversighl. lfeel my boclcground


in employmgnt low, qdministrolive proceedingt. and invesligotions mokes me


uniquely suiied to the fosk.


!ryhat qsEliritallons/crwtr do you hov* thut muke you a rlrong condirlols for rtrvicr sn
lhe BPCRS? Phora feel fm lo ottoch o rarume or sn qrddillonal pogr.


My bockgrcund in invetligstions, adrnlnistrolive proceecling! ond ernpklyment law


mske rrr uniquely suited to this position. Additbnolly. lunderslcnd lfre ffrnilcrtions cnd


slruclurgs undet which o body I'ke BPCRB operales qnd thol there sre siricl restriction


under the peoce Otficers BiIl of Righls in Cqffornio. further, my disposition makes me


especiolly well suited to the toslr. My w6rk wilh prosecutlng cttorneys givas rne o


certoin hegtth respecl for lhe work thot potice do, whlle my work wlth defense


siforne)rs meons thot I undantond thot pofice officer'r ore still folloble. My resume is


ottsched forreview.


Slgnolure ol Applicont: Dole:


Relurn this form to the 3ARTOffice of the lndependent police Audilor:
3OS Lokeside Driv6. 1^Ett' Floor. Oaklcnd" CA ?4611 or fcxlo [510] gf 4-lA7i or ernoit ls
oipg@bq$.gqv Coll {510} 874-7477 with ony quortions.


AppllcEilon peri$d €loter on fiisy t l. 3018
1







g.a/231?Z81A
1 E t" 54 74838?


#!er{u}


EDUCA.TIO!{
Colden Grtt University S*.bool tf Law
Doclor of Jurisprudenco Candidate


Hontrr:


A,ctlvltles:


University sf Californir at Btrkeley
Bacholq af Arts ia Dralnati* Art


}VORX EXPfi,N.IENCA
Kern Segal & Murray
Associate Attorney


trw Oflicer rf Elahe Wa[.ncc
Attcmey


Legal Aid of Merln
Voluotcer Attomey, Halirlay Cl inic


Modtrn Exprerx Courler
hoeess Ef fi ciency Consultrttt


Solsno Courty Public llofeilder'i Olficr
Certified l,aw Clerk


Deaa's $cholarship R*cipient 201 O-?CI i 3


Honom Lawyering Program; Pro Bo:ro Hsnor Socicty;
$fi&itr Awards: Criminal Luw, Advanced Tsrts
CALI Awards: Sesririties [wcstigati@s, .{atitngt,
Phi Alpba Delta Legal Fratcndfy; Marshal,20l&2011, Sponsorship


Csordinator 201 l-2012, Delegate to NatroneJ Conveution 3012


San Francisc.o, Califoruia
May 2013


Berkeley, California
Iune 2009


San Frane isco, Catifomia
March 2016-Preaent


Oakland, Califoruia
Feb. 20la-March ?016


San F,afael, California
Dece.mber 2013, zff14


Oaklan4 Csliforsia
Nt 2013-Fcb 20I4


Oakl*nd, Catrifornia
Spning 2013


Maoaged extensive lttigetion caselord consisting sf civil, crirninal, and adsridstrativc cases. Wrotr and


Argued Appcal before the F€derel Circuit. Tried case to vcrdist before jury in California court Managed
clieat expectatioas in sxMdsd litigrtiw. Depo*ed npett and lay rryitncs$ss. Advis?d busicess clicttts in
matlers reletcd to botb compliance and litigation rclatsd rtettcrs.


Prosecut&d cato$ olr behalf of fe&ral rnrrpl*yees. Oathered elidease, contacted wimewcs using
investigative sefl/ices and dircovery rnotioag, lYroto and argued motions before Fdcral Ar{ministatir,'e
Judgas attle EEOC snd MSFB" Deposed egcnsy and employee witsesssx hefore linal hearing.
Exanind snd cmss examined witrcsse* at hetring. Frepared wriuen closing statementr after hearings


befarc the EEOC.


Met \ryith clients and sBdents ro deveiop solutions to legal probloms for iadigeat climts, Preparcd actioos


plaos and developsd ac*ion immrs for ciients t$ t*ke affirmatiw inrmtdiare stopc. Preparcd
correspoadencc for client signature. Dealt witl clients from a nunber ofculnses and backgrounds in
English and Spaniehaf, aecessary.


Inv*srigated and analyzsd business process to finrJ means to reduce costs. Craated and imple.mented
*ccandary fle*t deployment pleu wit& r net savings of over $2S,000 io payroll, fuel, and toll *osts in the


first month uritbout rcquiriag layoff; or staff reductionr otr &e Google Shopping Express Couracr.


Litigatrd criminal cases (misderneatrcr erd f*lony) on behalf of criminal defendanw. Gathered
photographs, documemtauoq and recordings to defcnd clietrts. Interviewrd clisnts rtr prcparation for
hearings, and prelimilxies, Helped prepere materiels for tlals and hearingr. Wrote aad argued motions
befire Criminal Judges. Argted rnotions on behalf of crimj*al defeadantr







a'4/23t7818 141547{83CI?
PAGE E5/85


Wrote arrd nrgued motions bcfi:re a judge on behalfof crimisal dsfendantr. Negorinted plea-bargainr or
behalf of crieinsl de&ndete wi& apposlrlg counsel. Inteiliewed uiieas and wihasses io drtermine facts
ln criminal proceedings. Examined and aualyaed finsncial rerords nn behalf of defandents iu linaacial
caees. Retsarched and ctrotc fitgmoranda advisiag couneel rn psndrqg criminal cases.


San Frenrirco County Dirtrict Attorney't Offlce Ssu Fratrsiscq Califomia
CertiliEd L*w Clsrk fd1201l, Spring20r?
Perfqrrned policy researeh and prepared poticy brief$ fm rle Policy Director. Freparcd cascs for *al in
tnrancy court asd for guatity-of-lifs offenses iu taffic courl A*gued beforejudge in iudictment and tial
proceedings. Analyzed pending legislation b*th for irrpact and palitical conssqulncr.t. Wmr* Iegislarion
at bEhsst sf Chief-of-Suffand }olicy Directar. Wrotc correspondeuce fo( District Asomey rupponing
pending legislation" Neg*tiated plea agrcernents and altarnativc santenses wi& defendaats snd deftnse
coursel. Wrote mstiorrs for prcsentation in coun ir crirninal rnisdcrreanor trials,


AIDS Legrl Referrsl Ptnel San }ranei sco, Cab lornia
Honox Lawyering Extern Jrrne-Augurtr0l l
Investigated and gathened facts aud evidence !o prxlsecutc I case on beb*lf of a temnt against lris iandlord
for sn lJnlare,irl' Dsain6r, trntqrvie,wed client and witnesrps regarding urd$l,frrl deteioer in ordsr ro
develop pla"n ef action; ldet with ogrpostqg courscl to negotiat* settlment of unlaurful detarner. Met witl
comrnurity based-agencies to get federal iinancial assi*laace for ray client. lntervierved wiurasses and
inves(gat*d Frop€rty on behalf of client Dralled ccrrespandenrc€ to: qsposirrg couasel, community-besrd
aid *gencics, and my client. Brokered agresmsats to ksgp clieat in lris home. 


-


Mnrin Counfy Puhllc llcfender's (lIIIe*
Certified Law Clsrk


Alsuredr Clnemr aud Theatrr
I{ost of Special Evr,*ts


l{rlt Dkney $'rmlly ltlureum
A.IV Tccturician


McCrll md A*rocistes
Lead Lighting Tecbnician Oesi guer


Sar &afaol, Califomis
Suamer 2012


Alameda, California
Septemaber 20 tr I -Frcspnt


hesidio of San Francisco, Califomie
3009-2010


.San Franeisco, California
?006_2009


Hos? special evsnB: film openiags, amiversaries, special scrrenings, et cgtera. Represenr the Alameda
Theerc at public everts. Prepare audience participutions end ictexactiotrs to rnardmi{e *udience iu*lrst.
Entertars audierrce before special evetrts. Perforrnrd marketing and outrsach to locsts and community to
publicize epecial evfftts.


Devebped rnd implemeuted processes ts ensurc rcgrrlar rnd amergency ffaitrtcnfloce ofbleeding Edge
audi*/vimal sy$ttrnr in an ac(ve museun tbat was open to thc public six days per **ek *nd whose
exhibils all feahred sound snd vidco cerr}ally.


Trained a$d supervised ligbring staff st Northem California's largest event planner- Developed syetems
and aethod* far rrcki-ng ioventory, wukflow, end mailteBsnce. Devctopea lighrhg plaxs for special
events within budgetary and arcbitecurel lirnits. Dealt with conuaetorB and ou*ide vsndon to r{rflre
sufficiert materirls aud rcrources for event production.


Licencurc
Mernber ia good strnding of thE California Stete Bar licensed to praetice law before Stare aed lcdelal
courte in cditornia" Admincd to pracrice before the Federar cireuit.







APPUCATION FOR APPOINTMEHT
T* THE


EART PSI"ICE CI?IZEN REYIEW BOARD


The BART Bosrd of Directors estoblished the BART Police Citizen Review Boord {BPCRB}
to increcse visibility for the public into the delivery of BART Police services, lo provide
community porlicipoiion in the review ond estoblishmenl of BART Police Deportment
policies, procedures, proctices ond initiotives, qnd to receive citizen comploints r:nd
ollegolions of misconduct by BART Police Deportmenl {BfD} employees. The BPCRB is


on odvisory commitlee thoi reporls to the BART Boord of Directors. Meetings ore
generolly held once per monih, ond service on the BPCRB is voluniory.


As o volunteer member of this board you will:


. Receive citizen ollegotions of on-duty police misconducl


. Porticipote in recommending oppropriote disciplinary cction
o Advise Boord of Directors, lndependent Police Audifor ond Police Chief
. Review, recornmend ond monitor implemeniotion of chonges to police


policies, procedures & proclices


' Meet periodicolly wiih representotives of lhe BART Police ossociolions
r Porticipole in community outreoch


All BPCRB mernbers musl reside in one of lhe following three counlies: Alomedo, Contrs
Costa or Son Froncisco. BPCRB members rnust be fuir-minded ond obieclive wilh t:
demonsiroied commilment to community service. No person currenlly employerJ in o
low enforcemeni copocity. either sworn or non-sworn, sholl be eligible for oppointmeni
1o the BPCRB. No currenl or former or reletive of BART Police Deportment personnel moy
serve on the BPCRB. Appointees lo the BPCRB ore subjecl to q bcckground check ond
rnust nol hove ony felony convictions. Memben serving on the BPCRB ore not required
to be U.S. citizens.


Firsl Nome: Michael Lost Nome: Forsyth


Home/Moiling Address: II II_
Doylirne Phone:


Emeil: 


-


Ferscnol lnformotion


Occu pationlProfession: lT Manager


1







Genero I lnformotionlQualificolions


ln whot counly do you reside? Contra Costa


Are y*u cunently employed in o low enforcemenl copocily, eilhe,r sworn or n<ln*sworn?
_Yes _L No


Are you o curmnl or former SPD employee? _Yes X No


Are you o relotivet of o cunent or former 8PD employee? ..-Yes X No


Hove you ever been convicted of o felony? _ Yes X p6


References: Pleose provide ihe nomes ond contoct informqtion of three {3} references
who ore quolified lo discuss your condidocy for service on the BPCRB:


Nome: Brian Pagett


A.ddress:I-


Ngrne; _


Address:


Kendra Bittner


-
Nome: KristiButler


Address:


-


List ony organizotions or groups tho'lyou belong to or <rre involvecl with thot you believe
be<rr releyonce to your condidocy for service on lhe BPCRB:


H/A


lRelolives include spouse, domeslic porfner, child, porent, brother. sister, grandporent, step-porenl, slep-
chitd. legol guordlon. fsther-in-bw cnd molher-in-lnw.


)







Briefly exploin your inlerEsl in serving on the BPCR.B:


I am a Bay Area native and having lived nrost of my life here decided I wanted to do something


productive. I has used Bart for decades and my family and I try to use it as mucha s possible.


I'm interested in this role because I fuel its way to give back to my community and provide a


service to BART which again has been a part of mine and my familys for years and I want to do


my part,


Whut quolificolionsfussetr do you have that moke you o strong condidole for service on
the SPCRB? Plense feel free to oitoch q resume or on ndditional poge.


Not only have I used BARTtordeea{g!_al! have experian ilgdg$t_l also am a


supporter of law enforcement. My lifelwork experiance in dealing radth difficuh situations eitltsl as


a manager or in the military {Army) I was able to listen and understand issues io help make a


more informed reccomendation. On a daily basis we see our hardwaorking Police forces allover


the US qettinq attacked or blamed for situations that have them making the hest callthey can


with only seconds to make those calls. Sometimes thinsg go wroqg but'lhiqgrogp rggg ftgk__


not only educate the public but allow the Officers a fair chance to learn from thier mistakes.


Bole: sl,l,r
Signalure ol Applicont:


Relum this form to the SART Office of the lndependent Police Auditor:
3Oo Lokeside Drive. I 4tt' Floor, Ooklond, CA 946 i 2 or f ox io (5.l 0) A7 4-7 47 5 or emclil to
pipo8bart.oov Coll (510) 874-7477 with onyqueslions.


Applicotion period clo3es on Moy 11, 2018


'12-e<-"v*d
3


$-*\*e-;







Summary


lnformatian Technalqy Manager with ?1 years' experience and consrsfenf succes s in achieving
ptoiect and customY sati:laction gaals. created newproce$ses and successfully i*roaiiea
new sysfems. Able lo guide, hire, mentor and tead niginly skiiled, cross-functional teams. Ag1ty
to qui*kly evaiuate condifions and identify roof causeq ionvey campex technicalissiieq and
coodinate crass-functionatbusrness and technical project feams to detiver practica!, cost
e&cfiye solufions.


Experience


TrustArc
I Manaser


Se$.2m7 b Present


Neharork Respo nsi bil ities :


* Contribute to the design, impler*entatio* and ongoing manag€ment a{ the
corporate network


r lnterface with the systems engineering team to design and continuously deliver
securlty- related remedi ation


r Analyze data and define network capacity models and performance rnetricsr Develop automated methods to mitigate and remediate network events and
rninimice operational complexity


lT/Helpdesk ft{ anagar Responsibi tities :


' Responsible for delivering first class information technology needs to the
organization


r Plans, rnanages and directs departmental activities and services that includes lT
project managernent and business process improvement. Reviews and researches policy, administrative and organizational issues,
conducts studies, and implements changes


" Motivates and influences people to facilitate organization's effectivenessI Develops and implements all lT policies and procedures, including those for
architecture, security, disaster recovery, standards, purchasing, and service
provisioning


r Procure, support and maintain information systems and t*lecornmunigations. services


' Werk with Helpdesk Administrator in providing in person desk-side, Email &
VolP support for end user systerns


r Manage and optirnize technical support portal and prioritize, assign and
solve/close tlckets


. Optirnize end-user onboarding, off boarding and training. Support and provide maintenance of corporate WFi networks


' Support and rnanage vendor relationships for hardware and software


Mirh*el D.







Masonic Homes of California Sept.2006 ta $ept. 2A17
lT Director/H|PAA Securitv Of*cer
* Establish and maintain excellent working relationship with and keep in continuous
communication with internal and external user ccmmunities, at our 5 California Locations.
Develop deparknenEl and organizational Service LevelAgreements with appropriate
rnanagement.
* Manages and rnonitors customer satisfaction, and recommends appropriate strategies,
rnethodologies and operational initiatives to csntinuou*ly enhanra customer satisfaction.
* Manage all lT Client Services staff. Provide leadership, guidance and mentoring to technical
support employees. Assess performance, maximize productivity and promote tearnwork.
* With the VP lnformation Technology and software development staff, collaboratively manage
tl-re planning, scheduling, development and implementation of ali lT projects.
* L*ad the process of vendor identification, evaluation and selection for Client Services,
' Develops and enfcrces tT departmental policies and procedures including HIFAA lT security
cornplianca"
* Manages approved Client $ervices capital and operating expense budgets of $1.3M
" Applies signiflcant knowledg* of industry trends and developments to improve service io encl-
users.
" Assesses training needs and identifies training classes/tosls for end-users and lT staff
" Develop and maintain disaster recovery and business continuity plans


Outsource Group, LLC. (Sold to TriNeQ Aug. 2A05b Jul. 2006
!.9 Mangqer
"[i*anaged informaticn systems department staff of two.
*Evaluate new software and nehrvCIrk systems to improve the cCImpany's SaaS product offering
t* clients.
*lmplement disaster recovery plans, palicies and procedures.
*Managed entire l$ nenrork ts maintaift customers with S9.9Yo uptime requirement.
*Managed new product development, vendor management and new systems deployrnent.
* Developed plan to upgrade the company's backup strategy for client data,
' Established more efficient process for users and client support requests.
' lmplemented disaster recovery plan.
" Deployed upgraded hardware and software systems to improve client service performance.


" Established faining program to increase tlre value and productivity of lT Staff.
' ManagedlCoordinated all lT Vendor support efforts


IMPAC Medical Systems lnc. Mar. 2004 to Aug. 2AA5


ffiinstallationofcampanyofferedtechnologysystemstnhospitalsand
canc*r research centers worldwide.
Respansible for project planning and deployment of lMPAC Medical's technology systerns while
working with all levels af lT/Business staff. Responsible lor system build-outs, performance,


installation and optimization for clients. Frovided 2nd tier support for client's system
maintenance as ne*ded to include Microsoft SQL maintenance.


The GDR Group SePf. ?O03 to 4u9.2005
Sr. lI Conq-ultant
Provided desktrop and networking support for all GDR clients in trlorthern California Region.
Also, prol,ide helpdesk type support for client base and equipment recommendations.
*fUlonitor and rnaintain SQL 7 databases
*lr{onitor and maintain M$ Aciive Directory {A,t GDR client* use M$ AD}
*Monitor and maintain MS Exchange 2000 servers







"Deploy and maintain Dell equipment for allGDR clients
'software trouhle shooting on M$ office 2000/xp and Norton producis.*lnstall and nraintain No*on virus servers for all GDR clients


Upshot Corp. {Sold to Siebet Systems}
Onlne Ea.tabase Enqlneer


Sept" ?999 to Apr.2A03


?\'letwork Support onsite and at our co*locatian running Wn NT4 and Win?000 Server (120+
nod*s) including API servers & Database r*id hoxes {Dell *nd W}rite box *quipment},
Insiallaiion of a smallActive Directory Domain. Experience supporting NetApp F760/F840 and
migration of dala ts the NetApp t^pm l*ral storage. Experience supporting Veiitas backup
system using a Spectra Logic tape device. Znd level desktop support for 100+ user hase, this
inrludes troubleshoating hardware, soflware and nehrork issues (Using HP, Dell, C*rnpaq).
t-lelped tc plan and implement internal and external netwcrk expansion including building and
rnaintaining ne$d network equipm*nt for all fiew expansions. Suppor^ting *ur int*inal useis, with
issues relating to VPN, RAS, DSL and local DNS, security settings and fixes. Hardware
*xp*rience with: Dell senrers, HP Neh*nrked Pri*ters, Compaq deskiops and Laptcps, Palm
devlces and software, HP faxes, 3Com switches and Hubs, IBM Laptops, NetApp F760, Spectra
Loglc tape unit, wiring rf patch panels and regular maintenance. Soflrpare experience with:
Microsoft O.$-\fifin95, Wrng8, Win ME, WinNT4. Wn2000ProiServer and Wn XP. AIso Irilcrosoft
Office 20S0, XF versions (Outlook), Exchange server 5.5 & 2000, SQL ServerTl SQL20S0 and
lVlicrosoft CRM admin/install. Experience using Norton Virus scanners, Ghost, Remedy,
Ternrinal Services and PCArrywhere rernote tools.


Hewlett Packard Co.
Lead lT Deskiop/thrdware gqqBg*S*ecialisi


Mar. 1996 fo Sepf. 7999


Responsible for lT department's desktop support services at local HP sites" Mentored/Trained
staff and provided user training as need. Worked with other HP lT teams to support multiple
users and sites within the South Bay Area, Helped to develop processes to improve inter-
department conrmunication and improve customer service goals.


bKllts


* W-Fi technaiagy, Meraki/AeroHive
* ITIL v3 Founda{isn/fllpftpurpgg
* lT Management {Help DestdSr. l*evel lT Technicians, rernote staff}
" Budget Planning & Adrninisiration, Proiect Managernent
" Team Building, Mentoring & Leadership
' Prcblers: Saiving & Change Management, Customer Service
* Microsoft Technologies 1O$ X
" Blackberry/Ardroid/iOS
* Cisco VOIPIUM
" VMware, Fusion far Apple
' A DP/KronosA0.rorkDay/Track-ltlDell KACE


Fducation







UC Ext. Santa Cruz (10/2000 to 1112000) - lntro to Database Management Sysiems


MCP #2457041 lnstalling, Configr-rring and Administering Microsoft Wrndows


Disney lnstitule - Disney's Approach to Quality $ervice Nov S9e 3016


Global Knowledge Training Center
- Oracle DatabaseAdmil"listrati*n
- Cisco, lnlerconnecting CI$CO Netwcrk Devices
- lntr* to Oracle SQL and FUSQL


Hewlett Packard Learning Center
- HT$I{L Fundamentals
- Windovvs OS Snpport, installing and conftguration
- Management classes
- HP LaserJet hardware training
- lntrs lo Computer Programming
- HP l{etserver Hardware train







APPLrcATrcH FON APPOINTMEHT
TO THE


BART POIICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD


The BART Boord of Direciors estqblished lhe BART Police Citizen Review Boord (BPCRB)
to increose visibility for the public into the delivery of BART Police services, to provide
comrnuniiy porticipoiion in the review ond esloblishment of BART Police Deportment
policies. procedures, proctices ond iniliotives, ond to receive citizen comploints cnd
ullegciions of misconduct by BART Police Depcrtmeni {BPD} employees. The BPCRB is


on odvisory committee ihot reports to ihe BART Boord of Directors. Meetings ore
generolly held once per month, ond seMce on the BpcRB is voluniory.


As o volunteer member of this boord you will:


. Receive citizen ollegotions of on-duty police misconducto Porticipqte in recommending opproprioie disciplinory ociionI Advise Boord of Directors, lndependent Police Auditor ond Police Chief. Review, recommend and monitar lmplemeniotion of chonges to police
policies, procedures & proctices


. Meet periodicolly with representciives of ihe BART Police ossociolions. Porlicipcte in community oulreoch


All BPCRB members must reslde in one of the following three couniies: Alqmedo, Coniro
Costo or Son Froncisco. BPCRB member: mr-rst be iair-minded ond objeclive with o
demonstroted commitment lo con'lmuni'i"y service. No person cunently employed in o
lsw enforcemenl copocity, either swbrn or iion-sworn, sholl be eligible ior oppointment
to ihe BPCRB. No cunent or former cr relstiv* of BARI Police Deporlment personnel moy
serye on the BPCRB. Appointees to lhe BPCRB ore subiect io o bockground check ond
rnust not hove ony felony convictions. Menrbers serving on the BPCRB sre noi required
to be U.S. ciiizens.


Perronol lnformation


First Nome'M Losr Nome.{rjmu a


Home/Moiling Address:


Doylime Altrernq'te Phone:


Ernoil:


occupolion/Professior@ m*Y


1







Generol lnformalion/Quo lificolionr


ln whot county do you


Are you c-unently employed in o low enforcement copocity, eithersworn or non-sworn?
Yes y' No


Are you o current or former BPD employee? 


-Yes 
/ No


Are you o relotiver of o cunent or former BPD employee? 


-yes 
-{- No


Hove you ever been convicted of o felony? 


- 
yes .rl No


Relerences: Pleose provide the nomes ond contoct informoiion of three {3} references
who qre quolified io discurs your condidocy for service on the BPCRB:


Nome:


Address


List ony orgonizotions or groupr ihr;i ye, i:elong to or ore involved with thot you believe


beor relevonce to your condicqc\r lor service on the BPCRB:


lReloilv*,lnclude lpouss, domesllc purlner, chlld, polenl. brother, sltter, grondporenl, sfep-porent rlep-
chlld. legol guordlon, fother'ln-low ond mother-ln-low'


2







Briefly axplain your inleresl in serving on lhe BPCRB:


l,Yhal quafificotions/assele do you huve thcl moke yuu E rtrong cundidote for service on
rhe 8PCftB? Plesse feel free to qftoch o resume or an sdditionoi poge.


Signolure of Applic


Relurn this lorm lo the BART Office of the lndependeni Police Auditor:
300 Lskeside Drive, l4ttt Floor, Oaklond. CA ?4612 orfax to i510) 874-7475 or emoilto
oipq@bort.qov Coll {510} 874-7477 wilh ony questions.


Dore: Sh 18ffi


Applicotion period closes on Moy 11. 2018


I
I
i







Ieeshea Romero
BPCRB - Questions


Briefly explain your interest in serving on the BPCRB.


The Bart Police Gitizen Review Board (BPCRB) is founded on the principles to monitor
lhe implementation of police policies, to acl as an advising counsel, and to serve as a
convener of community advocacy. As a citizen and community member of district 10, I


am personally interested in efforts to increase cornmunig engagement and restoration of
communi$ trust in retation to Bart policing. I believe my collaborative skills lo identity
and problem-solve localchallenges, achiive results and increase the safety of all San
Francisco communities can prove to be a valuable asset to the board.


I have had the privilege of viewing many aspectn of SF Bay Area's communities from
many different perspectives, most importanily as a collaborator of community members
and public agencies. My ability as an innovaiive thinker with an adaptive perspective
provides a diligent focus to enhance the relationship between law enforcement and the
community.


My goal as a board member is to be irnpactful as possible, to be a voice in empowering
our communities, expressing how valuable it is to rebuild healthily relationship between
"the people" and law enforcement. There is a perceived destrudive cycle that is a reality
for many families of color that needs to stop. I am willing to do the work, take the risk of
being judged by my community for my associations, for the greater good of healing my
communi$ and breaking the cycle of destruction. I want to see change! Thus, I am a
strong believer in the power of change. As a member of the comrnunity, I have evolved
because I allowed myself to change. I believe when given suppotl and exposure to
platform as this, it will give us, the people, the confidence needed to make efforts that
will lead to a powerful change in our communities.


What qualifications/assets do you hayp that make y*u a strong candidate for
service on the BPCRB?


Cunently, I have been a member cf the $fpD C*rrrmunity Folicing Forum for (add how
many years). As an active community rncmber" c'f District '10 {Bayview Hunter's Poinl} in
San Francisco, I have worked with cther comrn*nity districts and SFPD in identifying
localchallenges between commilnities and law enforcernent. Our goal is to find
concrete ways to address the challenges' and irnplement policies that empower healthy
relationships between the two, We wrote a strat*gic plan that will be implemented within
SpPD. This role and experience has been an eye opener for rne and I arn truly grateful
to have been part of this Process.


Additionally, I arn an active participant in the Barbershop Forum that takes place across
the SF Bay Area {add how often and a few sample of topics and forurn participation e.g.
number of average attendees. This is an organization led by Alameda County Sheriff
Department, Oakland Folice Department and Communi$ Members'. The goal is to build
strong relationships between the comrnunity and law enforcement by giving an open
floor policy, which provides everyone a platform to address their concerns about law
enforcement. This is an effective resource in building bridges to bridge the gap we are
facing around communities and law enforcement. (Add information about the impacts in
the community and the $pes of incremental and systemic changes that have
oscurred - this will be important for the board to ascertain your effectiveness,







Ieeshea
Romero


Summary


Experience


Education


I have dedicated my career to increasing higher education and


employment opportunities for youth of underrepresented communities.


Based on my personal path to higher education and my career, I invest in
programs that not only support diversity and access, but prioritize


retention and quality. I work towards this mission through multilateral
and methodical program design, management, and community outreach.


I am excited for my next step as I consider myself a constant learner and


value collaboration that allows me to adapt, innovate, and be relevant in


my work and the people I serve.


lnneract Project / Community Partnership Manager
January 2015 - PR.ESENT, San Francisco


Lead community outreach, program development, and student retention,
Build strong partnerships bay area wide. Cultivate strong relationships
within unified schooldistricts and community based organizations.


Ripple Eltect22l Chief Development Officer
May 2017 - PRESENT, San Francisco


Plan, coordinate and assures implementation of strategies to develop
donors and contributions to support the organization. Assures
development and maintenance of appropriate systems to fund
devel*prnent and donor management" Maintains accountability and
compliance standards fnr donors and funding sources. Run
organizationai operaiions.


Crrnsultani to Nr:i'lp:*fits and Start-ups
January :013 - PRESF.NT. SF 3ay Area


consr-:lt*.rith *xeruti'.,e ieaders and business managers on allstages of
orgarrlzation anri prlgram development. lcommand a skill set that is both
broad and drep irrcluding the following areas of demonstrated expertise:
Project Development, Program Management and Evaluation, Strategy,
Business Planning, Leadership and Diversity and Grant Writing.


Mills College, Lorry l. Lokey Graduate School of Eusiness IMBA
January 2009 - PRESENT, Oakland


Patten Unlversity I BA Psychology


January2005 - June 2O08, Oakland


Community Research Board - Center for Youth \{ellness
September 2015 - PRESENT


Diversity Committee - San Francisco Waldorf High School


August 2017- PRESENT


I


-


Professional Affiliations


I







APPLICA?ION TQR APPOII{Tf{IEHT
TO THT


BART POLICE TITIZEN ftEVIEW BOARD


The BART Boord of Direclors esioblished the BART Police Citizen Review Boord (BPCRBI


to increose visibility for the publie into the delivery of BART Police services, to provide
community porticipstion in ihe review ond establishment of BART Police Deportment
policies. procedures, proctices ond initiotives. ond to receive citizen comploints ond
ollegctions of misconducl by BAHT Police Deportment {BPD} employees. The EPCRB is


on sdvisory committee thot reports tc the BART Boord *f Directors. MeetinEs ore
generolly held once per month, ond service on the BPCRB is voluntory.


As o volunteer member of this boqrd you will:


" Receive cilizen otlegotions of cn-duty police misconduct
r Porlicipote in recommending oppropriote discipfinory oction
r Advise Boord of Direcfors. lndependent Police Audiior ond Police Chief
. Review, recommend ond monilorimpiementotion of chonges to police


policies, procedures & proctices


" Meei periodicolly with representotives of the BART Police ossociolions
. Porticipote in community oulreoch


AII BPCRB rnembers rnusl reside in one of the following three counties: Alomedo, Contro
Costo or Son Froncisco. SPCRB members musl be fsir-minded ond objective with o
demonstroted commitment to community service. No person cunently employed in c]


low enforcement copocity, either sworn or non-sworn, sholl be eligible for oppointment
io the BPCR&. No current orformer or relolive of BART Police Deportment personnel moy
serve on the BPCRB. Appointees to the BPCRS are subjact to o bockground check ond
must not hove ony felony convictions. Members serving on the BPCRB ore not required
fo be U.S. citizens.


Personql lnformalion


First Nome: Zo,*1.-xr Lsst Nome , Qr*u o *
Home/Moiling Address: rf-I
Dcrytime Phone: ternCIte Phsne:


Emoil:


occupotion/Profess ion, - ?ro{etror .-


1







Generql lnlcrm ati on/Qra lificetions


ln whot county do you reside? .Gft * f{a+er>


Are you cgnently employed in o low enforcement copccity, either sworn or non-sworn?
'-Yes _:{ ruo


Are you n cunent or former BPF e,mployee? _*Yes t/ No


Are you o relcrtiver of o currenl or former BPD employee? _yes :{ No


Hove you ever been convicled of o felony? 


- 
yes ,/rqo


Referencer: Pl*ose provide the nomes ond contcct informotion of ?hree {3} references
whc ore quolified to discuss your condidocy for service on the BpcRB:


Nome:- f5ict"gltq -!l&"&\,rr -__
Address: r lIrI-I r r - III
Nome: $a nie


Address: r ll;l
Nome: lL""*!r+r., A^aih"


Address: _f 


-Ifl 
.I III-I


Lisl ony orgonizolions or groups fhol you belong to or ore involved with thol you believe
becr relevonce io your condidscy for service on the BpCRB:


Inetqttver lnclude rpoule, domerllc parlncr, chlld, pcrenl. brather, slrfcr. grondpcrenl, slep-parenl, step-
chlld, legol guordlon. lofh*r{n-lcr ond rnolher.ln-ts\r"


?







Briafly exploin your inleresl in serving on lhe BPC*Br


slt"*


ue.** ,+ otr-. f aLnl *t^ir


& 4,*".1i{tJ cn^d td u"te .


lltlrot quolifications/asssts do yau hlve that moke yeu s slrong condidEte for service on
rha BPCRB? Pleole feel free to otloch o r€sume or qn oddilionol poge.


tA Ite 
^


cop,vj*eq, ,- o,*A - { lob^*krt q*:W, lol'r..l - r Lu, G,t^ ,-_*--


Slgnolure of Appllconl:


Return this form to lhe BART #{ce of ihe lndependent Police Auditor:
300 Lokeside Drive. [4m Floor, Ooklond. CA946t2 or fox to l5l0] 874-7473 or emcil to
oioq Obo,ri.qov Coll (51$l 874-7477 with ony questions.


Applicolion period closes on Moy tl, 2018


sltD{ttr


-







I







II







&i*fly *xplairr 1cw inlrr,rrl,i* r*viaE *n fr* lPfii







ABP* }T *Y*Nhl trlnD 
'itrP.^t;hTYf,NGhIT


g"a, q $p**rr+tt*t*t\t t rtitr'r.te t"'*,* X q#if rrtt!lke!*X


?.* ?HE


EANT TOLIf;X CITIZEH ATvlX'lI' BGARB


The BART Soard of Directors established the BART P*:lice Citizen Review Board {SPCRB)
to lncrease visibility for the public into the delivery of BART Police services, to provide
community participation in the review and establishment of BART Pclice Department
policies, procedures, practices and iniliatives, and to receive cltizen complaints and
allegations o[ misconduct by BART Pnlice Department {BpD} employees. The SPCRB is
an advisr:ry committee that reports to the BART Soard of Directors. Meetings are
generally held once per month. and service on the BPCRB is voluntary.


As a volunteer member of this board you will:


. Receive citizen allegations of on-duty police rnisconduct
r Farticipate in recommending appropriate disciplinary action
. Advise Board of Directors, lndependent Pollce Auditor and Police Chief
r Review, recommend and monitor lmplemenlation of changes to pollce


policles, prCIcedures & practices
. Meet periodically with representatives of the SART Police associations
. Participate in cammunity outreach


All BPCRB rnembers must reside in one of the following three counties: Alameda, Contra
Costa or San FrancKco. BPCRB rnembers must be fair-rninded and objectlve wlth a
demonstrated commitment to community service. [,'lo person currently employed in a
law enforcernent capacity, either sworn or fi$n-sworn, shall be eliEible far appointment
to the BPCRB. No cunent or former or relative of BART Folice Department personnel may
serve on the BPCRB. Appointees to the BPCRB are subject to a background check and
must not have any felony c*:nvictionE. Members servinq on the BPCRB are not required
to be U.S, citizens.


Psr*anol lnformati*m


Firrt Name:


Daytime Phone: ternale Phone:


[mail:


r*lfrtg{ Be*errtro,l, ?,'t},r fP fe"*trn,


Home/Mailing Address:


(}cc u pa tionlProfession :


a^ot 6*r\y C*-rc { {o,{*"c^*,*rr)
/







Ganersl lnformolionlQuolificationr


ln what county do you reside?


Are you cunently employed in a law enforcement capacity, eit
_Yes ',{ No


SWOrn Or non-swnrn?


Are you a cunent or former BPD employee? 


-yes 
/-*"


Are you a relativel of a cunent orf'orrner Bpfi *mployee? yes -1*o
Have ycru ever be*n convicted of a felony? _ yes y' 


frJcr


References: Please provide the names and canlact informatlon of three (3) references
who are qualified to dlscuss your candidacy fnr service on the BpcR$:


Narne: {_,


Address; Phone


Name
^,lr,eJc.


Address:


Name:


Address:


List any organizations or groups that you belong to or are involved with that you believe
bear relevance to your candidacy for service on the BPCRB:


Y


lRelatives ioclude sFor.rie. domestic pa*ner. child, parent, brotfrer, $*ler, grandpare*l, step-parent. step-
child, Iegal guardian, f at&*r.in-law a nd rnother-in-law"


1







Sriafly exploin your inlerecl in servi*g on ihe BPCf,,B:


*t''I.


Whot quolificctionslorse*r do you hcve thql mak* you r xlrong cnndi*ota for terire on
rhs BFC*E? FIeEre ieel fr*e to oilqch q REEUme Er nn nddiiionol page.


Signature af Applicant: Bare: 5 ',11lnlfr


Retum this form to the BARI Dffice of the lnd Police Audilor:
300 Lakeside Drive, 14tl Floor. oakland, cA 94612 oriafT6 (siO) 874-?475 or emailto
oipc€hafi.gov Call (510) 8?4-7471wi1h any questions,


Application period clnses on May't1, 2018


-i)


n


C







APPTICATION FOR APPOINTMENT
TO THE


BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD


The BART Boord of Directors estoblished the BART Police Citizen Review Boord (BpCRB)
io increose visibility for the public into the delivery of BART police services, to provide
communiiy porticipotion in the review ond esloblishment of BART police Deportment
policies, procedures, proctices ond iniiiotives, ond to receive cilizen comploints ond
ollegotions of misconduct by BART Police Deportment (BpD) employees. The BpCRB is


on odvisory committee thot reports to the BART Boord of Directors. Meetings ore
generolly held once per month, ond service on the BPCRB is voluntory.


As o volunteer member of this boord you will:


. Receive ciiizen ollegotions of on-duty police misconduct


. Poriicipote in recommending oppropriole disciplinory oclion
o Advise Boord of Directors, lndependent police Audilor ond police Chief. Review, recommend ond monitor implementotion of chonges to police


policies, procedures & proctices
. Meei periodicolly with representotives of the BART police ossociotions. Poriicipote in communiiy outreoch


All BPCRB members must reside in one of the following ihree counties: Alomedo, contro
costo or son Froncisco. BPCRB members must be foir-minded ond objective with o
demonstroied commiiment 1o community service. No person cunenfly employed in o
low enforcemeni copocity, eiiher sworn or non-sworn, sholl be eligible for oppoinlment
to ihe BPCRB. No current or former or relotive of BART police Deportment personnel moy
serve on the BPCRB. Appointees to the BPCRB ore subjeci to o bockground check ond
must not hove ony felony convictions. Members serving on the BpcRB ore not required
to be U.S. citizens.


Personol lnf ormolion


First Nome: Alexonder Lost Nome: Posl


Home/Moiling Address: City:


Doytime Phone: Aliernoie Phone: N/A


Occupotion/Profession: Atlorney







Generq I I nformqtion/Quo lificqtio ns


ln whot county do you reside? Son Froncisco


Are you currently employed in o low enforcement copocity, either sworn or non-sworn?
_Yes _X_ No


Are you o current or former BPD employee? 


-Yes 
-X- No


Are you o relotiver of o current or former BPD employee? 


-Yes 
-X- No


Hove you ever been convicted of o felony? 


-Yes -X- 
No


References: Pleose provide the nomes ond contoct informotion of three (3) references
who ore quolified to discuss your condidocy for service on the BPCRB:


Nome: Alison Bernslein (former Choir, Berkeley Police Review Commission)


Address:


Nome:


Address:


Phone:


John Crew (former Director, Police Proctices Projecl, ACLU)


Phone:


Nome: Dovid Rizk (Vice Choir, BART Police Citizen Review Boord)


List ony orgonizotions or groups thot you belong to or ore involved with thot you believe
beor relevonce to your condidocy for service on the BPCRB:


Boord Member, Colifornio Atlorneys for Crimino! Justice (cocj.org)


Co-Choir, Juslice Committee - Democrotic Sociolists of Americo, Son Froncisco


lRelollves include spouse, domeslic porlner, chltd, porent, brolher, sisler, grondporenl, slep-porenl, step-
chlld, lego! guordion, fother-ln-low ond molher-ln-low.


Address: Phone:


2







Briefly exploin your inleresl in serving on the BPCRB:


The world is chonging, ond policing, like every other governmentol function, must odopt
ond meet people where they ore, rother thon stick with ouidoted models ill-suited 1o


communities government seeks to serve ond protect. I hove more thon 10 yeors of
experience in criminol low, ond more lhon l5 yeors experience with BART. I commute
from Son Froncisco to Ooklond ond bock everydoy, ond use BART frequenfly on ihe
weekends, within the ciiy ond to visit friends in Wolnut Creek, go 1o Worriors gomes, etc.
l've ottended severol BPCRB meetings ond hove been very impressed by the
professionolism ond preporedness of the Boord. llove public tronsit (l've been cor-free
for 8 yeors) ond I om possionote obout public sofely. Representing BART os o police
officer is on incredible responsibility; you become o foce of the ogency. I know BART


Police Officers toke thot responsibiliiy seriously. My bockground, my decode plus of
public service, ond my zeol for criminol justice issues meon lwill toke the responsibiliiy of
serving on the BPCRB seriously os well.


whol quolificolions/ossets do you hove thot mcke you o slrong condidote for service on
lhe BPCRB? Pleqse feel free to o och o resume or on odditionol poge.


l've been working in criminol low since I groduoted from low school in 2007. working for,
ond procticing in front of, the Colifornio Supreme Court hos given me o greoi high-
level view of our stote's criminol justice system, including the role of policing. I hove
spent the post severol yeors onolyzing criminol justice ond police proctices legislotion
os port of the legislotive commitiee of Colifornio Attorneys for Criminol Justice. More
locolly, I hove spent the lost yeor serving os co-choir of the Justice committee of DSA-
SF, where we hove been deeply engoged in the discussion of use of force policies ot
the Son Froncisco Police Commission. My work bockground, combined with my stote
ond locol service, give me o slrong bockground to serve on ihe BpCRB.


For odditionol bockground informoiion, pleose see my resume, otioched.


Signolure of Appliconl: Abxail*r po*? Dote: 5/l I /'18


Return this form lo the BART Office of the lndependent Police Auditor:
300 Lokeside Drive, l4rh Floor, Ooklond. CA94612 or fox to (5l}l 874-7475 or emoil to
oipo@borl.qov Coll (510) 874-7477 wilh ony questions.


Applicotion period closes on Moy 11,2018


3







ALEXANDER POST


Experienced criminal deiense appellate attorney focusing on complex capital appellate
representation. Combines outstanding research and writing skills with a strong analytic€l
focus on the short term and long term consequences of stralegic choices. Knowledge
and expertise in preparing materials for diverse audiences: Supreme Court.iustices,
attorneys, criminal defendants and their families, and California legislators. Demonstrated
commitment to reforming California's criminal justice policy.


ATTORNEY I DEPUTY STATE PUBLIC DEFENDER OFFICE OF THE STATE PUBLIC DEFENDER
EXPERIENCE i SEPTEIMBER2OOg-PRESENI


' Handle all aspects of a capital direcl appeal, including record review and correction, issue
spotting and development, and writing an opening brief and responsive brief.


. Conduct extensive legal research, including the use of both Westlaw and Lexis databases.


. Carefully review, analyze and evaluate briefing and memoranda for my own cases and
those of other attorneys in the office.


. Craft high quality legalwriting for briefs and memoranda.


. Conduct moot courts to prepare for oral argument; argue.


. Maintain relationships with clients, including handling prison issues.


. Serve on working groups for various policy issues affecting OSPD.


CRIMINAL CENTRAL STAFF ATTORNEY SUPREME COURT OF CALIFORNIA
AUGUST 2OOT.AUGUST 2OO9


. Reviewed petitions and evaluale the claims presented therein.


. Researched and analyzed novel issues of law and offered detailed recommendations.


. Prepared conference memoranda for Justices to aid in decision to grant or deny review.


' Presented issues my recommendations at a weekly meeting with the assigned Justice.


INTERN FIRST DISTRICT APPELLATE PROJECT
IVIAY 2006-5EPTEMBER 2006


. Performed in-depth legal research and drafted memoranda for appellate arguments.


. Researched and wrote portions of appellate materials, including a writ of habeas corpus


INTERN SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC DEFENDER
AUGUST 2OO5.DECEIV]BER 2OO5


. Performed tasks relevant to all facets of the trial process, from arraignment to trial support.


' Conducted client inlerviews and information gathering for pre-trial conferences.


ALEXANDER POST


- 


-------t







POLICY
EXPERIENCE


BOARD MEMBER CALIFORNIA ATTORNEYS FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE
FEBRUARY 2014-PRESENT
.As member of Legislative Committee, evaluate potential California criminaljustice
legislation to determine effect on criminal defendants.


. Research and analyze good/bad bills and write persuasive letters of support or opposition
on behalf of CACJ to chairs of Assembly and Senate public safety committees.


. Lobby California legislators in person on behalf of CACJ's legislative priorities.


. Help retain and grow CACJ membership.


CO-CHAIR JUSTICE COMMITTEE _ DEMOCRATIC SOCIALISTS OF AMERICA, SF
IV]ARCH 2017-PRES ENT


'Organize around local and state-wide criminaljustice issues.


. Study local ordinances affecling public safety, attend hearings, present to agencies.


. Conduct community outreach on issues and for events, such as 'Live From Death Row - A
Conversation with Kevin Cooper'


GOLDEN GATE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW, SAN FRANCISCO, CA
DOCTOR OF JURISPRUDENCE MAY 2OO7


Honors: Dean's List, Summer 2005, Spring 2006, Fall 2006


Activities: lvloot Court Board, Studenl Bar Association Treasurer 2006-2007


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT DAVIS, SAN FRANCISCO, CA
BACHELOR OF ARTS POLIIICAL SCIENCE JUNE 2014


Activities: UC Davis Men's Rowing Team,2000-2004, Witdtand Firefighting,2OO2


"The Necessity of Recording Police lnterviews: Accountability and Reliability" -Forum
(CACJ Magazine), Vol. 42, No. 4, 2016.


"Posl-Conviction Workshop: Pleading Prejudice in your Capital Appeal,,,2O.t6 Capital Case
Defense Seminar, February 12-15, 2016. (Co-Presenter).


'Nuts and Bolts of the Direct Appeal," Multi-Agency Summer Law Student and New
Employee Training, June 6-9, 20'16. (Presenter).


Leader of OSPD lntern Program: Represent OSpD at career fairs and other recruitmenl
events, evaluate applicants, conduct interviews, select inlerns, supervise interns, mediate
between attorneys and interns, and conduct exit interviews.


Member of OSPD Lethal lnjection Task Force: Research proposed CDCR protocol for lethal
injections with focus on client and OSPD impact, draft section of OSpD public comments.


Signature gathering and phone-banking in support of Proposition 34 in 2012, and against
Proposition 66 in 2016.


EDUCATION


PUBLICATION AND
PRESENTATIONS


OTHER RELEVANT
EXPERIENCE


ALEXANDER POST







APPilCAT'OH TGR APP.OIT-{T'WEHT
TO THE


BART POLICE CITIZEH REVIEI{' SSARB


Ihe BART Eoord of Director estoblished the BART Police Citizen Review $oord {BPCRB}
to increcse visibilify for the public inta the delivery of BART Police seryices, to provide
cornmunity porticipotion in the review ond estoblishment of BART Police Deportment
policies, procedures, proctices ond initictives, and to receive citizen c*mplaints ond
ollegotions cf misconduct by BART Police Deportment (BFD] employees. fhe BPCRB ir
on odvisory committee thot reporfs to the BART Board of Directors. Meefings ore
generolly held once per month, ond service on the BPCRB is voluntory.


As a volunteer member of this board you will:


. Receive citizen ollegotions of on-duty police misconduct


. Porticipote in recommending qppropriote disciplinory oclion
r Advise Boord of Directors, lndependent Police Auditor ond Police Chief
r Review. recornmtsnd und monitor implementotion of chunges to police


policies, procedures & proctices
r Meel periodicolly with represenictives of the BAHT Police cssociqtionr
r Porticipole in community outreoch


All SPCRB member: must reside in one of the fotlcwing three counties: Alamedo, Csntrq
Costo or Son Froncisc*. BPCRB mernben must be fqir-mlnded qnd objective wlth a
demonstrsted cnmmitment to community service. No person cunently employed in o
low enforcemeni copocity, either sworn or non-sworn, shcll be etigible for oppointment
to the BPCRB. No cunent or larmer orrelotive of BART Police Deportment personnel moy
serve on the tsPCRB. Appoinfees to the BPCRB ore subject io o bockground check ond
must not hove ony felcny convictions. Members serving on the BPCRB qre nol required
io be U.$. citizens.


Personol lnformction


Firsf Nome: IT,r \a; u Lost Na


HomelMailing Address


Doyiime Phone:


Emoil:


Qccupction/Profession: 4fa.r"*.+r


1







Genera I lnformEtion/Quolification s


Are you y'nently employed in s lsw enforcement capocity. either sworn or non-swr:rn?
Yes t' No


Are you s cunent orformer BPD employee? 


-y", 
,{Uo


Are you o relotiver of o cunent or former BpD employee? 


- 
Vr, ;Ao


/
Hove you ever been convicted of o felony? _Ves y' No


Iefer*nces: Pleose provide the nsmes ond conicct informotiCIn of three {3} references
who qre quolified lo discuss your condidclcy for service on the BpcRB:


Narne:


Address: r
Nome:


Address:
I


List ony orgonizotiens or groups t belong to or ore involved with thol you believe
bear relevonce to your candidscy for service CIfi the BpCRB:


llelcrlives include rpoule. dEmestlc Fsrlner, child. pcrenl, brother, slslxr, grnndporenl, rtep-por*nt, step.
ch{ld, legol guordlon, fsltrer-ln-lEw End molher"ln-lsw.


' 6l,rL L: un tll^j*--


2







Briefly exploin your inlerest in rerving on lha BPCRBT


5g{- .Ar-}-J


tilhol quotifications/ussels do you have thut mqks yog u stfirng cundidEt* far cervice on
lhe BPCf;.B? Plesga feel free lo Ettorh E resume or on odditionol page"


gqz ,**t.


t
sisnorureorApprrcu"r W {{y Dsre: Sfgl$
Return this form t8 the EART Qffice of lhei lndependent Police Auditor:
300 Lokeside Drive, l4n Hoor, Ooklond, CA 94612 or fox to {51 0} 87 4-7 47 5 or emoil to
oiocQbort gqv Coll {$10} 874-7177 with <rny questions"


Applicaiion period elo*er o* May 1I, :0I&







TMPLOYMENl


EDUCAflAf,I


rljNlVEkSlTY OF THI WEST lf{0lES, lrlsrman Manley lar,v $chool, Kingston, Jamaica, CLE. in Law
TUNIVERSITY Ot CAUFORNIA, Hastings College of the Law, San Francisco, CA, USA, J.D, ln Law
TDARTMOUTH COLLEGE" Hanever, FlH, USA, B.A- ir Goyernment
TUNIVERSITY Of EOINBURGH. Edinburgh, Scotland, UK, Forelgn Study Program ln Fhilosophy


furgMarRSffrps
r Dartmouth Lauryerr,Associatisn, Hanover, N H


rf,alifornle Employment tawyers Association, San Franciseo, CA
rf{ational lawyers Guild, San Francisco, CA


flELATED EXPEN'ENCE


rTHE REV{|ATORY CENTER FOR ARTS &THI t3W Berketey, CA


2013
2S3
199t


Autumn 1997


2004*Current
?01&Current
2014{urrent


July ?01 S-Curr*nt Attornayl0wft*r
Litigatang civil rights ca:es in the areas of harassment and discrimination based on sex, sex srientation and gender under FEHAu Title Vll,
Unruh Act and Section 19E3' Also, Fractic* personal injury law in the area ol child ablrse matters. Filed complaints, prepared discovery,
drafted pleadings and motions, and litigated cases through verdict in Alameda, San Francisco and Contra Costa counties. Also,
conducted legal research using \{estlaw and Califcrnia practice guides published by the Rutter Gr*up. C*nducted client intakes,
interviews, obtained witness declarations, care assessm*nts and attended mediations.


rtAW OFFICE CIF WAYIIE A. MCFADDEN, San Mateo, CA Febru*ry ZAL4'Jan. ?01S Asmciate Attorn€y
Filed cornplaints, prepar*d discovery, drafted pleadings and rnotions, and lifigated cases throuth verdict in Alameda, San Mateo and
Santa Clara Counties. Also, cunducted legal research using Wesllaw and California practice guides published by the Rufier Group.
Csnducted client intakes, interviews, obtained witness declarations, case assessmentt end attended mediations in cases involving FEHA,
wage and hour violatisn$, real e$tate traflsaritions and family law cases. Proficient in Oirsamaster, lVestlaw, Lexis-Nexls, Essential forms.


TMYERS, FLEICHER & 6ORDON, Kingston, Jarnaica, West lndies Winter 2012-2013 Foreign ln-Service Attarney
Conduct*d legal research of defense-side comnrercial, civil, and employment litigation rnatters using Westlaw, Lexis and Cari-Law.
Prepered resesrch memoranda; assisted a$orneys wlth drafting of subrnissions; assisted attorneys with fillflg courr documenls tn
Suprerne Court; prepared notes of witness t*stinrony for attor*ey review at trial; researched filing requir*ments regarding privl Council
ca$es; through research purtuant to Money Lenders Act, Securities Act, General Contrastors Act and the Supreme Court Rules of Civil
Procedure; generally supported litigation and cemrnercial attorrieys urith research and writing.


TREVELATTON LAW FIRM, Berkeley, CA USA 2CI05-2CI12 Anorney - Civil Rights
Conducted all aspects of law firm practice and rnanagernent, including drafting motions performlng le6al research, interviewing clients,
correspondence, litigating civil rights, employment law, business litigation and personal injury cases, a{counting, b*okkeeping,
calendaring, court appearanres. Fr*pared video re-enectments of key case rcenel. defended and taken meny depositions, opposed
several summary judgment mstions, attended trials.


rlOlSN LAW FIAM, San Francisco, CA USA 2002 - 2005 Law Clerk- Plaintiff-Sid* Employment taw
Brafted demand letters and intervienred rlients during intakes at thi: plaintiff-side employment and personal injury l*w firm. Drafted
pleadings including carnplaints. dernurrerl a 5t-.4PP motion, points and authorities for an oppositicn to a motion for summary
judgment, and a mediation brief. Proficient in Word, Wordperfec! legal Solutions. Lawtext, and ?rolaw,


t4ecreatianal sctivities: Reading, ru**ing 5k and LAk races, comrrtodities research {possed Series 3 ond iA exams in 20ll), traveling, yogo.







Stlelanie D. Popper Attachmenir


Brietlv exolain vour inter*rt ir! *ervjns gq the SFCBPB:


I only recently became interested in service after the Sahleem Tindte incident involving BART Bolice"


Ordinarily, as a civil rightr attorney and as a Black r,rroma& I tend to give the b*nefit of th* doubt to the


citizen, not the police, where shooting incidents are involved. But the Tindle incident rerninded me that
extreme care alrd attention to details are needed when rsviewing accusations of police


misconduct/brutality. While there rnay not be strong legal grounds for a 42 U.S.C. 1983 violatinn or


criminal prosecution of the Officer {Mateu}, some attenticn to public conrern andlor outrage about


perc*ived racisnr andlor profilirrg is needed. I r,flould like to bring my wel{-rounded and insightful ideas


and experiences to the Baard and assist with reviewing complaints and designing forums where BART


police can continue to address issues in the community in a thorough, peaceful and mutually respectful


manner that brings out the best in its officers and i* our citizens/residents.


What qualifisationslassets do vou have that make vou a stronp candldate for seryice on the BPC*81


Please feEf free ta attach a re ume qr an adl$tlqn* paq ,


l've held a position as a Commissicner on the Personnel Eoard far the city of S*rkeley since May of
2017.


l've also practiced civil rights law with a focus on rex harassrnent and race discrimination since 2005.


I arn an active participant in healing communities such as Re-evaluation Co-Counseling, l2-Step


Programs, Nichiren Buddhism and East Bay Church of Religious Science.


I am an immigrant to the United States from Belize {in 1981) and arn now a U.S. citizen, but I come from


a farnily with many law enforcement officers in the Caribbean/Central America, My perspective is


unique.


I believe in justice tempered with compassion and understanding.





